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1. Corporate Policy

Bank's Vision and Mission Statements
Vision

The bank envisions being a progressive, reliable bank providing personalized, fast, efficient services,
responsive to the emerging needs of the community.

Mission

To develop, improve, and expand customer relations and bank services;

To generate funds from various sources to support, expand, and diversify services;

To optimize the use of assets to sustain and enhance growth;

To provide and encourage a professional and harmonious relationship among staff, customers and

the public for the common good.

o To develop, establish, and maintain a functional human resource development/management
program;

o To promote and foster shared values and vision.
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Core Values

Honesty and integrity- the heart of our core values
Fairness - resolving conflict situations

Maintain professional decorum

Excellence in giving the best quality service at all times
Protection of the client’s confidential information
Protection and safeguarding the bank assets
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b. introduction of the Bank’s Brand

Imus Rural Bank, Inc., as the First Rural Bank in Imus, Cavite and perhaps one of the oldest existing rural
banks in the country, has stood the test of time, bringing products and services that cater not only to the
residents of Cavite but also to those of the neighboring provinces of Southern Luzon, namely: Quezon
province and Batangas.

The Bank was founded in 1953 by a group of professionals and businessmen who shared the same
vision. The Bank started as a one- unit bank in Imus town proper until it established 3 more branches in
the Province of Cavite: Imus Public Market (1982), Molino, Bacoor (1996), and Salawag, Dasmarifias
(20186).

In line with the Bank's strategic plan to expand its network, the Bank opened its BLUs in Mauban,
Quezon (2017) and in Balayan, Batangas (2018). Our Candelaria branch-lite (2019) was temporarily
closed and will be relocated somewhere in Cavite to cater the needs of our clients particularly in Imus
area.
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c. Business model of the bank

The Bank’s current business model is consistent with its vision that is to be a progressive bank
responsive to the emerging needs of the community. Its branches and branch-lites are considered “the

business centers” which are all focused on generating deposits and loans, thus, building revenues and
resources.

As a simple bank, its main source of income comes from lending services through both secured and
unsecured loans consisting of Real Estate Loans, Agri-Agra Loans, SME loans, Auto Loans, Personal and
Consumption Loans, Market Business Loans, Farmers Loans. It also offers deposit services like Regular
Savings Deposit, Special Savings Deposit, Current Accounts and US Dollar Deposits.

2. Financial Summary/Financial Highlights

2023 2022
Profitability
Total Net Interest Income 75,234,794.00 61,112,359.00
Total Non-Interest Income 6,555,473.00 4,841,108.00
Total Non-Interest Expense 47,818,594.00 46,431,333.00
Pre-provision profit 30,694,996.00 11,572,678.00
Allowance for credit losses 30,073,593.00 26,769,696.00
Net Income 21,611,989.00 9,238,282.00
Selected Balance Sheet Data
Liquid Assets 397,766,154.00 337,749,553.00
Gross Loans 516,879,200.00 587,285,102.00
Total Assets 1,279,652,159.00 1,332,155,871.00
Deposits 1,037,545,378.00 1,108,817,177.00
Total Equity 235,231,507.00 213,619,518.00
Selected Ratios
Return on equity 9.63% 4.48%
Return on assets 1.65% 0.69%
Capital adequacy ratio 25.63% 31.11%
Others
Cash dividends declared - :
Headcount 58 54
Officers 26 19
Staff 32 35

3. Financial Condition and Result of Operation
a. Review of Bank's operations and result of operations for the financial year

As the economic conditions remained below growth projections, the management worked hand in hand
to optimize the use of its assets to sustain and enhance growth. As a result, the Bank has improved
markedly better since the pandemic.
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In 2023, the Bank noted the following:

o 133.90 % increase in net income or Php21.612 million

o The profitability ratio improved, with return on equity rising to 9.63% from 4.48% in 2022, and
the return on asset likewise went up to 1.65% from 0.69%.

o Total deposits went down by 6.4% or Php1.038 million.

o Net loans decreased by 13.10% or Php486.806 million

o Total assets decreased by 3.90% or Php1.280 million.

While the path for economic recovery remained uncertain, the Bank performed well during this crucial
times and will continue to improve its operations and outcomes.

b. Highlight of major activities during the year that impact operations

One of the sources of the Bank’s income came from its lending operations. IRB extends loans and other
credit facilities to support micro enterprises, small and medium enterprises (SMEs), private
corporations, agri-agra loans. It also provides home, automobile, education, and salary loans for
individual customers.

Imus is a highly urbanized area where rice fields are now substantially converted into housing and
commercial developments. IRB remains committed in servicing key players in the agri-business value
chain in Cavite and other provinces. At the end of 2023, the Bank posted a total of P86.723M loans to
Agri-Agra; meanwhile, the outstanding loans to micro, small, and medium enterprises, including those
engaged in other sectors such as transportation, housing, and education, reached P425.444M.

c. Major strategic initiatives of the bank and the banking group, as applicable

Since the Bank relies heavily on lending as its primary source of income, it will continue to improve its
loan portfolio and considers this as a top priority. The year 2023 is an extension of the outcome of 2022
strategic plan, thus the following are the major strategic initiatives that the Bank sets out to achieve its
long —term vision:

o Improve profitability and strengthen return on assets and return on equity;

o More efficient loan collection efforts;

o Staff development both for existing personnel, including new hires.

d. Challenges, opportunities, and responses during the year, if any

It has been three years since the onset of the pandemic, some adverse effects on which remain.
Inflation, both global and domestic, has now impacted on the economic growth, but the Bank managed
and continues to show strength and resilience.

The Bank has its own share of challenges:

Closure of Candelaria branch-lite in the 3™ quarter of 2023;

The outbreak of ASF that affected our clients in agri-business;

The low interest rates on loans offered by UBs/KBs;

The Bank was not able to reach its target both for loans and deposits.
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The Bank nonetheless finished the year stronger and better than 2022, even with the difficult challenges and
headwinds faced in the year.

4, Risk Management Framework Adopted

a. Overall risk management culture and philosophy

The Bank recognizes that risk management is an activity critical to its success. It is committed to ensure
consistent adherence to best practices and standards and to apply prudence and accountability in its
risk-taking activities. The Bank exposes itself to a myriad of risks as its Loan Portfolio expands. Such risks
are mainly exposure to market, credit and liquidity risks. Consequently, the Bank has adopted the
appropriate risk management structures, policies, and processes to address each type of risk. The key
risk processes involve identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling risks.

The following key features support the Bank’s approach to risk management:

0

The Board of Directors — The Board of Directors exercises oversight on all risk - related functions of
the Bank based on a top - down structure, The BOD has the ultimate responsibility for approving and
periodically reviewing the risk strategies and significant policies of the Bank. It adopts policies and
guidelines to govern the safe and prudent functioning of the Bank with the end in view of effectively
managing all risks in its activities. The policies to be formulated include, but not limited to, lending,
investing, fund sourcing, liquidity management, personnel administration, and internal control.
Senior Management — Senior management is responsible for the implementation of the strategies
on risk control and makes adjustments to overall business strategy. They also ensure compliance
with laws and regulations and systems to measure and monitor performance.

Board Credit Committee ~A board level committee responsible to oversee the credit risk - taking
activities, quality and profitability of the credit portfolio, and credit evaluation process. All credit
proposals beyond the credit approving limit of the Credit Committee pass through this committee
for final approval. This committee also endorses credit proposals beyond its approving limit to the
BOD for final approval.

Asset-Liability Management Committee — A management level committee responsible for the
overall management of the Bank’'s liquidity risks. It monitors the Bank’s liquidity position and
reviews the impact of strategic decisions on liquidity. It is responsible for managing liquidity risks
and ensuring exposures remain within established tolerance levels.

Compliance Unit — This unit is responsible for reviewing any legal or regulatory matters that could
have a significant impact on the Bank’s financial statements and compliance with laws and
regulations. It reviews the effectiveness and adequacy of the system for monitoring compliance with
laws and regulations. The Compliance Officer reports to the Board through the Audit Committee.
Internal Audit — Internal Audit provides an independent assessment of the Bank’s management and
the effectiveness of existing internal control systems through adherence testing of processes and
controls across the organization. The IA audits risk management processes throughout the Bank. It
employs a risk -based audit approach that examines both the adequacy of the procedures and the
Bank’s compliance with the procedures. It discusses the results of all assessments with
management, and reports its findings and recommendations to the Audit Committee.
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b. Risk appetite and strategy

The Board of Directors is responsible for defining the bank’s level of risk tolerance and for the approval
and oversight of the implementation of policies and procedures relating to the management of risks
throughout the bank.

The risk management policy includes:

A comprehensive risk management approach;

Detailed structure limits, guidelines and other parameters used to govern risk taking;

A clear delineation of lines of responsibilities for managing risk;

An adequate system for measuring risk, and

Effective internal controls and a comprehensive risk - reporting process. The board of directors
ensure that a robust internal reporting system is in place that shall enable each employee to
contribute to the appreciation of the bank’s overall risk exposures.

0O Cc 00O

The Bank does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes.
The most significant financial risks to which the Bank is exposed to are described below.

Market Risk — The Bank is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments more
specifically to interest rate risk and certain other price risk which resulted from its operating, investing
and financing activities.

Interest Rate Risk — the bank follows a prudent policy on managing its resources and liabilities so as to
ensure that exposure to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits.

As a result of these, the Bank's exposure to interest rate fluctuations, and other market risks, is
significantly managed.

The Bank maintains most of its deposit base on a short-term basis. Rates on special savings account are
usually priced according to the amount deposited.

Foreign Currency Risk — except for small USD Savings Deposits, the Bank has no exposure to foreign
currency risk as transactions are denominated in Philippine peso, its functional currency.

Credit Risk — Credit risk refers to the potential loss of the Bank's earnings arising from the inability to
adequately review and analyze requests for credit to determine likelihood of repayment. This includes
the failure to manage the risk such that a loss is incurred if the borrower does not fulfil its financial
obligations in a timely manner. Managing credit risk involves defining the principles and parameters
governing credit activities at various levels, i.e. strategic level, portfolio level down to individual
transaction or account level.

The following tools, among others, are used to identifying, assessing and managing credit risk:

o Established credit policies, asset allocations and concentration limits, collateral acceptance
criteria, target market and clearly defined approving authorities;

o Defined documentation policies of approved credit lines;

o Independence of credit control and monitoring functions from the credit risk-taking
function;

o Periodic monitoring of individual account performance;
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o Regular review of the adequacy of valuation reserves;

o Active loan portfolio management to determine the quality of the loan portfolio. Including
risks associated with particular industry sectors, loan size and maturity; monitoring portfolio
growth, collection performance and delinquency trends, trend of non-performing loans,
concentration risk, other performance indicators; and,

o Close monitoring of remedial accounts.

o Having a credit risk scoring system which measures the likelihood of a client’s encountering
repayment problems.

Credit Concentration -The Bank believes that good diversification across economic sectors and
classification of borrowers will lessen this risk. Excessive concentration of lending poses undue risk on
the Bank’s asset quality.

The credit review auditor reviews the Bank’s loan portfolio regularly and reports monthly, in line with its
policy of avoiding significant concentration to specific industry or group of borrowers. To maintain the
quality of its loan portfolio, the Bank enforces a stringent policy on credit evaluation.

Credit Quality — Loan classification is an integral part of the Bank’'s management of credit risk. On a
regular basis, loans are reviewed classified and rated based on internal and external factors that affect
their performance. Loan classifications of impaired accounts are assessed and the results are used as
basis for the review of loan loss provisions.

The carrying amount of financial assets recognized in the financial statements, represents the Bank’s
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into account the value of any collateral obtained.

Collateral — Quality of collateral is one of the considerations in the granting of loans as this is an
alternative way of collecting from the borrower in case of default. Collateral is valued according to
existing credit policies, with the appraisal report as basis of the computed loan value.

As part of the Bank’s risk control, a central unit is charged to handle collateral documentation wherein
standard documents are used. Any deviation from these pro-forma documents are subject to Board of
Directors and Legal Officer’s approval prior to use and acceptance.

The Bank normally grants loans to borrowers at 60% (for land) and 40% (for improvements) of the latest
appraised value of the borrowers’ collateral. Any excess over these values requires Board approval.
Non-risk assets are back-to-back loans granted against deposits.

Other Exposures to Credit Risk — The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible,
since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in cash
and cash equivalents are cash in banks and short-term deposits which are insured by the Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a maximum coverage of PO.Smillion for every depositor per
banking institution. Short-term investments are in the nature of Treasury Bills.

There is no significant credit risk relating to HTM financial assets that are generally guaranteed by the
Philippine government. Other placements are with well established corporate issuers, i.e., top 500
corporations.

Liquidity Risk — Liquidity risk is the risk that funds available may not be adequate to meet the credit
demands of the Bank's customers, sudden withdrawals of deposits and repayment of deposits on
maturity. The Bank manages liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets of appropriate quality and by
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maintaining a loan portfolio with evenly-spaced maturities and cash flows. In addition, the Bank seeks to
maintain sufficient liquidity to take advantage of interest rate opportunities when these arise.

The main responsibility of daily asset/liability management lies with the Treasury Unit. Liquidity risk
management is monitored through Asset-Liability Management Committee. The Bank’s principal source
of liquidity is comprised of cash and other cash items, due from BSP and due from other banks and
regular amortization payments on loans.

A liquidity risk measurement tool to determine any future liquidity structural imbalances is in place to be
able to formulate strategies to mitigate liquidity risk and address funding needs.

Liquidity is being monitored and controlled thru maturities of assets and liabilities over time bands as
reflected in the liquidity gap report. This report is prepared to provide senior management and the
Board timely appreciation of the Bank's liquidity position.

The ALCO and Treasury are responsible for the daily implementation and monitoring of relevant
variables affecting IRBI's liquidity position. ALCO reviews the Bank's assets and liabilities position on a
regular basis and, in coordination with the Treasury, recommend measures to promote diversification of
its assets/ liabilities according to source to minimize liquidity risks resulting from concentration in
funding sources.

IRBI formulated a liquidity contingency funding plan using extreme scenarios of adverse liquidity which
evaluates the Bank's ability to withstand these prolonged scenarios and to ensure that it has sufficient
liquidity at all times. The contingency plan focuses on the IRBI's strategy for coordinating managerial
action during crises and includes procedures for making up cash flow shortfalls in adverse situations. The
plan details the amount of available funds of the Bank (such as Due from Banks, HTM) and the scenarios
under which it could use them.

Although the Bank pursues what it believes to be a prudent policy in managing liquidity risk, a maturity
gap does, from time to time, exist between the Bank’s assets and liabilities. In part this comes about as a
result of the Bank’s policy to seek higher yielding assets, a policy which will generally lead to the average
maturity of its financial assets exceeding that of its liabilities.

The Bank does liquidity gap analysis using the Liquidity Gap Report (LGR). It is a risk measurement tool
used in identifying the current liquidity position to determine the ability to meet future funding needs. It
breaks down balance sheet items according to estimated maturities of assets and liabilities in order to
determine any future structural imbalances such as long-term assets growing fast than long-term
liabilities.

IRBI has established guidelines for liquidity risk limit setting to enable it to properly and prudently
manage and control liquidity risk consistent with the nature and complexity of its business activities,
overall level of risk and its risk appetite (15% of the total deposit liabilities).

c. Bank-wide risk governance and risk management process

The Bank's risk management framework aims to ensure that there is an efficient and effective process in
place to manage risk. It is committed to ensure consistent adherence to best practices and standards
and to apply prudence and accountability in its risk-taking activities.
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AML Governance and Culture — In accordance with the laws of the country and the guidelines set by the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas as well as the best practices of other countries towards the proper
implementation of an AML/CFT policy; the Bank hereby adopts a policy program that incorporates the
following features:

o

The Compliance Officer together with the Internal Audit unit are the key entities responsible
in preventing, detecting and reporting potential money laundering and suspicious financial
activities of clients as well as monitoring customer and counterparty transactions in
compliance with the Anti-Money Laundering Law, its implementing rules and regulations
and those of the BSP particularly Circular letters 706 & 950,

The Board of Directors is primarily responsible for ensuring that the Bank possesses a
comprehensive and effective AML/CFT compliance program and oversight framework. The
BOD also ensures that the Bank’s senior management is fully capable and enabled, qualified,
and properly motivated to manage the program’s compliance risk arising from the Bank’s
business activities in line with its AML/CFT policy. Furthermore, the senior management is
responsible for communicating and reinforcing the bank’s AML/CFT culture that is a must
for the proper and strict implementation of the bank’s AML/CFT policy program in
accordance with national and international best practices.

Conscientious observance of strict Customer Due Diligence (CDD), “Know Your Customer
(KYC) and profiling practices as the first line of defense against money laundering and
terrorism financing. Those identified as potential high risk customers must undergo an
Enhanced Due Diligence (EDO) without violating their rights. These bank activities will be
undertaken as a continuing pursuit. Anonymous accounts, accounts under fictitious names,
and all other similar accounts are absolutely prohibited.

Proper monitoring and identification of financial transactions and activities that may appear
suspicious and not above board.

sufficient screening in the recruitment process which will ensure that only qualified
personnel without any criminal record are employed in sensitive banking functions.
Adoption of rigorous, regular, extensive and up to date training regimen for all front line
employees in keeping with the objective of fully identifying the parties with whom the Bank
is doing business with and thus ensure that all transactions are proper and in accordance
with this policy.

Good maintenance of records keeping of customer’s identification and transaction
documents for the required period within the bank’s premises in compliance with existing
rules and regulations.

Creation of an independent unit to conduct periodic review of the different units of the
Bank regarding it compliance with the provisions of the law, BSP rules and regulations and
with this policy program.

Regular updating of the Bank’s AML/CFT policy program at least once a year to incorporate
changes in the AML/CFT policies and procedures, the latest trends in money laundering and
terrorism financing typologies and the most recent pertinent regulatory issuances.
Recognition that due diligence must keep pace with the evolving schemes adopted by
money launderers and terrorist organizations since adequate deterrence AML/CFT can only
be brought about if it is observed and practiced as a continuing activity.

This policy program covers all its branches and branch-lite units.
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5. Corporate Governance

It refers to the framework of rules, system and processes by which business are directed and controlled.
The Bank recognizes that effective corporate governance practices are essential in achieving and
maintaining public trust and confidence in the banking system. These are critical to the proper
functioning of the banking sector and economy as a whole.

The Bank sticks with its Core Values of good governance:
Honesty and integrity- the heart of our core values
Fairness - reporting conflict of interest situations
Maintain professional decorum

Excellence in giving the best quality service at all times
Protect the client’s confidential information

Protect and safeguard the bank assets

0 000 0

a. Overall corporate governance structure and practices

The Board acknowledges that to continue to be successful in the long term, the bank must be led by an
active board, with appropriate skills, experience, independence and knowledge of the activities of the
bank.

The Bank is headed by an effective board which collectively is responsible for the long term success of
the bank.

The Board of Directors is composed of 9 members. The Board is supported in its governance functions
by five (5) specialized oversight committees on Audit, Asset/Liability Management, Credit, Nominations,
and Human Resource Compensation and Remuneration. All the committees report regularly to the BOD
on their activities as follows:

a. Audit Committee — provides oversight of the Bank's Financial Reporting and Control and
oversees the work of internal and external audit functions; it monitors and evaluates the
adequacy and effectiveness of the internal control system.

b. Asset/Liability Committee — provides oversight of senior management's activities in managing
liquidity, market risks, evaluate, monitor and approve practices relating to risk due to
imbalances in the capital structure, Also consider investments and operational risk.

c. Credit Committee — recommend changes in policy, procedures and underwriting guidelines to
the BOD. Grant sound loans while protecting the overall financial stability of the bank.

d. Nominations Committee - provides assessment of Board effectiveness as well as
qualifications/disqualifications of members of BOD as well as those of the nominees. It reviews
and evaluates all persons nominated to the Board as well as those nominated to other positions
requiring appointment by the Board.

e. HR Compensation and Remuneration Committee — provides oversight of remuneration of Senior
Management and other key personnel thus ensuring that compensation is consistent with the
Bank’s culture, objectives, strategy, and control environment as reflected in the formulation of
compensation policy.

- — Fage 10
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b. Selection process for the board and senior management

The Board acknowledges that the Members along with the Senior Management have proper skills,
experience and dedication for the growth of the bank.

To ensure diversity, the Board shall continue to consider age, educational background, business and
professional experience in banking or related industry and competence.

The Directors and senior management are expected to remain fit and proper for their positions the
entire duration of their terms. They should possess the proper business judgment, unquestioned
integrity, and the ability to make decisions objectively and independently. The Directors recognize
that their membership in the board carries grave and serious duties and responsibilities as it demands
from them their complete devotion to safeguard the bank’'s resources and to enhance its
stockholders’ investment. They are also cognizant of the importance of observing and promoting
good governance.

c. Board's overall responsibility

The Board of Directors, composed of nine (9) members, is mainly responsible for determining the
Bank's mission and vision. The Board meets the obligation of accountability to their shareholders and
take into account the interests of other recognized stakeholders. it approves and oversees the
strategic objectives and corporate values that are communicated throughout the banking
organization. It sets and enforces clear lines of responsibility and accountability throughout the
organization,, consistent with prudent board policy, transparent and at an arm’s length basis.

d. Description of the major role and contribution of the Chairman of the Board

The Chairman of the Board provides leadership in the board. He is responsible for the efficient
functioning including maintaining a relationship of trust with the members of the Board. He decides on

all matters to be included in the agenda and presides at the meetings of stockholders and Board of

Directors.

o Ensure active participation and sufficiently deep professional involvement of all members of the
Board of Directors.

o Encourage and actively solicit views and opinions of other members of the Board prior to
arriving at a decision.

o Ensures that all members of the Board are given sufficient information and time to enable them
to study carefully and responsibly issues that come up to the board.

o Allows for, and even encourages, the expression of independent views that may be different
from those proposed by top management.

e. Board composition
No. of years
Type of served as No. of shares Percentage of
Name of Directors Directorship director heid shared Held

Crisostomo, Jose Jr. P. Executive 28 17,665 1.77%
Villanueva, Susan Pear! Executive 20 7,878 0.79%
D.

Topacio, Sandra B. Executive 14 9,857 0.99%

Page 11
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Saulog, Alejandro B. Non-Executive 38 8,145 0.81%
Tirona, Oscar F. Naon-Executive 36 37,479 3.75%
Benedicto, Katherine R. | Non-Executive 5 14,154 1.42%
Abelardo, Nelson S. Non-Executive 20 3,781 0.38%
Ugalde, Maria | Independent 3 1,892 0.19%
Bernadette 5.
Tirona, Gerardo Ma. | Non-Executive 1 9,410 0.94%
Ramon D.
f. Board Qualification
Current
Name of Directors Relevant directorship/officership
qualifications/experiences in other companies Age Nationality
Crisostomo, Jose Jr. | Bachelor of Laws Partner JCrisostomo Law 67 Filipino
P. BS Business Economics Office; President, Joyas
Phils., Inc.
Villanueva, Susan Bachelor of Laws Senior Partner Cruz, 57 Filipino
Pearl D. Bachelor of Arts History Marcelo &Tenefrancia
Post Graduate- Master of Law Office
Laws Director-First Community
Bank, Inc.
Director- Villanueva
Holdings, Inc.
Topacio, Sandra B. BSBA — Banking & Finance 61 Filipino
Saulog, Alejandro Jr. | Bachelor of Laws Senior Partner Saulog & 65 Filipino
B. BSC — Commerce De Leon Law Office
President/Director MSSL
Realty and Dev. Inc.
Tirona, Oscar F. BS- Mechanical Engineering | Chairman/President  of 92 Filipino
Professional Mechanical several real estate corp.
Engr.
Asian Institute of
Management- Management
Course
De La Salle University —
Professional Studies
Benedicto, BS- Nursing Administrator — KRB 41 Filipino
Katherine R. BSBM- Entrepreneurship Maternity, Adult & Child
Clinic
Abelardo, Nelson 5. | Doctor of Medicine Chairman — Manila 72 Filipino
Post Graduate — Internal Doctors Hospital Dept. of
Medicine Specialty; Cardiology
Cardiology Specialty; P&G Staff Cardiologist Asian
Studies in Cardiology Hospital & Medical
Center
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Asst. Medical Director -
Manila Doctors Hospital
Medical Director- GX
International
Pharmaceutical
Ugalde, Maria | Doctor of Medicine Owner-IPM Multi- 55 Filipino
Bernadette S. Post Graduate-Fellowship Specialty Clinic
Tirona, Gerardo Ma. | AB Psychology Vice President/Head of 57 Filipino
Ramon D. Masters in Business | Marketing Department-
Management Sun Life Grepa Financial,
Inc.
g. List of board-level committees including membership and function
Board Level Committees Membership Function
Credit Committee Chairperson: Approves credit transactions up to
Crisostomo, Jose, Jr. P. its approval limit as delegated by
Members: the BOD, including credit
Benedicto, Katherine R. exceptions.
Topacio, Sandra B. Approves the sale of ROPA up to its
delegated limit.
Reviews, deliberates, and endorses
to the BOD credit proposals and
ROPA sales beyond its delegated
limit.
Recommends changes in policy,
procedures and  underwriting
guidelines to the BOD.
Grant sound loans protecting the
overall financial stability of the
bank.
Audit Committee Chairperson: Provides oversight of the bank’s

Ugalde, Maria Bernadette 5.
Members:
Saulog, Alejandro, Jr. B.

Tirona, Gerardo Ma. Ramon D.

financial reporting and control, as
well as the internal and external
audit functions.

Responsible for monitoring and
evaluating the adeguacy and
effectiveness of the internal control
system.

Reviews governance, risk
management, and controls

Asset and Liability Committee
(ALCO)

Chairperson:

Villanueva, Susan Pearl D.
Members:

Crisostomo, Jose, Jr. P.

Tirona, Gerardo Ma. Ramon D.

Topacio, Sandra B.

Sets police and standards for
liquidity, interest, market, and
investment risk identification and
analysis, measurement, monitoring
and control.

Provides oversight of senior

Page 13
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management’s activities in
managing liquidity, market risks,
evaluate, monitor and approve
practices relating to risk due to
imbalances in the capital structure.
Also consider investments and
operational risks.

Personnel Committee

Chairperson:

Abelardo, Nelson. S.
Members:

Benedicto, Katherine R.
Crisostomo, Jose Jr. P.
Topacio, Sandra B.

Formulates and reviews job
descriptions, performance
standards and evaluation forms,
conduct hiring of staff.
Responsible with respect to
designing, approving, evaluating
and administering compensations,
polices and programs of the bank.

Nomination Committee

Chairperson:

Ugalde, Maria Bernadette S.
Members:

Abelardo, Nelson S

Saulog, Alejandro Jr. B.

Provides assessment of Board's
effectiveness and directs the
process of election of Board
members. It reviews and evaluates
all persons nominated to the Board
as well as those nominated to other
positions requiring appointment by
the Board.

h. Directors’ attendance at board committee meetings

Personnel

Bosed Numberof | SPeditCommittee | AuditCommittee | oL by | ALCO Nimber of
Name of r—— Number of Number of Shisiihias of e
Directors Meetings Meetings Meeti

Attended % Attended | % Attended | % | Attended | % | Attended | %
Abelardo, 22/24 92% 7/7 100%
Nelson 5.
Benedicto, 24/24 100% 24/24 100% /7 100%
Katherine
R.
Crisostomo, 24/24 100% 24/24 | 100% 717 100% 4/4 100%
Jose Jr. P.
Saulog, 23/24 96% 8/10 80%
Alejandro
Jr. B.
Tirona, 22/24 92% 8/10 80% a/a 100%
Gerardo
Ma. Ramon
D.
Tirona, 24/24 100%
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Oscar F.

Topacio, 24/24 100% 24/24 100% 7/7 100% 4/4 100%
Sandra B.

Ugalde, 23/24 96% 10/10 100%
Maria
Bernadette
S.

Villanueva, 20/24 83% 4/4 100%
Susan Pearl
D

Total 24 24 10 7 4
Number of
Meetings
Held During
the Year

i. List of executive officers/senior management

Positi Relevant ional
W qualifications/experience Age " ity

Crisostomo, Jose Jr. P. | Chairman Sacheloratise 67 Filipino

BS Business Economics

Bachelor of Laws
Villanueva, Susan . Bachelor of Arts History I
Pearl D. Vioe: Presitient Post Graduate- Master of 1 Filipino

Laws
Topacio, 5andra B. Treasurer BSBA — Banking & Finance 61 Filipino
Sauler, Enrigue K. Corporate Secretary | BS- Computer Science 38 Filipino
Matro, Maria | Compliance Officer | BSC- Accounting 58 Filipino
Consuelo G.
De Guzman, Roberto | Manager BSC- Accounting 54 Filipino
T.

j. Performance Assessment Program

o The Board of Directors undertakes a formal and rigorous annual evaluation of its own performance
and that of its committees and individual directors.

o Individual evaluation of directors aims to show whether each director continues to contribute
effectively and to demonstrate commitment to the role (including commitment of time for board
and committee meetings and any other duties). The Chairman acts on the results of the
performance evaluation by recognizing the strengths and addressing the weaknesses of the board,
identifying individual and collective development needs and, where appropriate, proposing new
members be appointed to the board.

o The Chairman conducts annual performance evaluations of the other executive directors, in relation
to their role as members of the Board and reports this to the Corporate Governance Committee. A
summary of the agreed outcome will be reported to the Board.




~ -\

' l B IMUS RURAL BANK, INC. ANNUAL REPORT | 2023

o]

o

The Chairman determines the individual and collective development needs of the Board as a result
of the performance evaluations set out above, and put appropriate development programs in place.
Senior Management is assessed in their individual capacity and all officers and employees of the
bank on a regular basis. The results of the assessment are documented and evaluated for the
effectiveness of their functions.

k. Orientation and Education Program

(o]

A newly appointed director is required to attend a special seminar on corporate governance to be
conducted by a duly recognized private or government institution duly accredited by the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas within six (6) months after appointment, subject to exceptions as provided
herein.

The Board of Directors and key officers of the Bank also attend, at least once a year, a program on
corporate governance conducted by training providers that are duly accredited by the SEC or BSP.
The Bank shall also implements an appropriate communication and professional training and
development program for officers and employees as well as a succession plan for senior
management.

The Compliance Office and Human Resource Office will collaborate regarding compliance training
and education programs for various corporate business functions designed to ensure that all officials
and employees have the awareness of legal requirements that are relevant to their work at a level
appropriate to their jobs and that all employees have the awareness of bank policies, procedures
and standards of conduct.

|. Retirement and Succession Policy

The Bank is still in the process of establishing its policy on the retirement for directors which shall be
in line with considerations of ensuring the continuity of the bank as a vibrant and viable banking
institution, while recognizing the valuable contribution of the long serving directors who have
acquired extensive experience and familiarity with the bank’s operations and of the environment in
which it conducts business. Fundamental consideration is their continued compliance with the fit
and proper requirement to fulfill the role of directors. Further, the Bank gives importance to the
expertise and experiences of the senior directors and the valuable wisdom they can impart to the
Board. This is especially significant in view of the largely personal and direct dealings of the Bank
with its clients, who, by large, are known members of the community. The continued presence of
the senior directors provides a real sense of stability and security for the members of the
community for them to continue transacting with Imus Rural Bank in the face of the growing
competition from larger, more aggressive banks and the difficult times brought about by several
factors, including the pandemic. The directors should continue to be mentally and physically fit to
discharge their duties and responsibilities. They should have the time to and make the effort to
regularly attend Board meetings, actively participating in the discussions by sharing his/her
knowledge and insights. They should be able to attend and adequately prepare for committee
meetings where they are members. For independent directors, under applicable regulations, they
may only serve as such for a maximum period of nine (9) years, after which, they shall be
perpetually barred from serving as independent director in the Bank.

The retirement policy of the bank states that the rank-and-file employees have a compulsory
retirement age at 55 years of age while for senior officers it is 60. However, IRBI may extend the
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services of individual employees and officers on a case-to-case basis in meritorious service where
the interests of the Bank are properly served.

As far as executive or working directors, the bank has, until now, no prescribed retirement age. But
the members of the BOD are considering setting a policy on this matter taking into consideration the
current practice in the banking industry.

The Board shall ensure that IRBI has in place an appropriate and updated succession plan for key
executives to address emergency in the event of extraordinary circumstances and ensure continuity
of operations.

in the event of death, iliness or other incapacity of a director, or if the director is removed under
Section 7 of Article IV by stockholders holding 2/3 of the subscribed stock, or otherwise ceases to be
a director, Section 6 Article IV of the by-laws shall apply, whereby, the remaining directors may elect
the replacement for the balance of the unexpired term.

In case of death, iliness, absence or other incapacity of the President, or should for any reason the
office of the President becomes vacant, the Vice President shall exercise all the powers, authority,
and duties of the President until such time as the board of directors elect the new President to serve
the unexpired term.

In case the position of Vice President, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary becomes vacant, Section 6
Article IV of the by-laws shall apply, whereby, the remaining directors may elect the replacement for
the balance of the unexpired term. In the absence or incapacity of Corporate Secretary, the board
may designate an Assistant Corporate Secretary who shall exercise all the powers, authority, and
duties of the Corporate Secretary.

In anticipation of the temporary absence or incapacity of senior officers, the heads of the different
offices and branches are to designate appropriate employees within the branch or office who are to
take over the duties of the officers who are absent or incapacitated. In this regard, appropriate cross
training shall be regularly conducted among officers so as to allow them to competently assume the
duties and responsibilities of other officers.

m. Remuneration policy

The levels of remuneration of IRBI shall be sufficient to attract and retain experienced and professional
directors and officers needed to run the Company successfully. A proportion of executive directors’
remuneration may be structured to link rewards to corporate and individual performance. The Bank’s
Personnel Committee shall monitor and review the remuneration and other incentives policy including
plans, processes, and outcomes, at least annually, to ensure that it operates and achieves the objectives
as intended. A Human Resources consultant was recently engaged to conduct a study on the
compensation levels of the Bank’s personnel, with an end to bringing the Bank to or near parity with
comparable establishments in Cavite, as well as in Metro Manila.

i. Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-executive Directors

Executive Directors — executive directors are not compensated as directors of the Bank. As officers of
the Bank they receive salaries, bonuses and other standard bank benefits, as approved by BSP, in
accordance with the performance management philosophy of the Bank based on meritocracy or pay for

- Page 17 e ——
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performance. The Bank allows travel (except foreign travel) for its officers for official or business
reasons. All travel expenses are shouldered by the Bank, including the travel allowance/per diem subject
to policy guidelines and approval by the President.

Non-Executive Directors - The Bank By-Laws provides that each director shall be entitled to receive from
the Bank, pursuant to a resolution of the Board of Directors that was approved by the stockholders,
reasonable honoraria (fees and other compensation for his services as director for actual attendance
and/or participation in meetings, conferences or other official Bank functions. The Board of directors
shall have the sole authority to determine the amount, form and structure of the fees and other
compensation of the director. In no case shall the total yearly compensation of directors exceed 10% of
net income before tax of the Bank during the preceding year.

ii. Remuneration Policy for Senior Management

The total compensation program of the director is competitive and linked to the bank’s overall
compensation philosophy. The compensation system and policy applicable to the Board of Directors of
IRBI are established in the By-laws. The Bank aims to provide the Board of Directors and its officers with
a compensation package that is reasonable and comparable to what is paid by other companies taking
into account the bank’s position against peers in the industry and other market considerations.
Generally, officers’ salaries are determined with reference to the salary scale corresponding to the
position and rank. Annual salary review is conducted and all increases are performance based. The Bank
grants bonuses inclusive of 13" month pay required by the law. The Bank also grants a performance
bonus (non-guaranteed) based on the bank’s performance overall market conditions and individual
performance of the recipients and does not merely stem from the circumstances prevailing in the
market. The members of the Board of Directors receive compensation (fees, bonuses and allowances)
based on their banking or finance experience and their attendance in meetings of the Board and the
committees where they are members or by reason of any other advisory duties they may perform for
the institution, other than those inherent in their capacity as directors. The Board of Directors sees to it
that the remuneration policy is regularly reviewed to ensure that it is commensurate with corporate and
individual performance and that the remuneration is consistent with industry while maintaining internal
equity at the same time.

n. Policies and Procedures on Related Party Transactions

Imus Rural Bank, Inc. has established policies and procedures on related party transactions. These
include definition of related parties, coverage of RPT policy, guidelines in ensuring arm’s-length terms,
identification and prevention or management potential or actual conflicts of interest which arise,
adoption of materiality thresholds, internal limits for individual and aggregate exposures, whistle blower
mechanisms, and restitution of losses and other remedies for RPTs.

The Related Party Transactions policy applies to IRBI and intended to ensure that every related party
transaction is conducted in a manner that will protect the Company from conflict of interest situations
which may arise between IRBI and its Related Parties; and proper review, approval, ratification and
disclosure of transactions between |IRBI and any of its related party/ies as required in compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements. The policy also requires that any member of the RPT Committee who
has a potential interest in any related party transaction shall abstain from the discussion and
endorsement of the related party transaction and any member of the Board who has an interest in the
transaction must abstain from the deliberation and approval of the any related party transaction.

Page I8
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The Bank approved loan to related parties with hold-out deposit securities amounting to Php350
thousand and Php500 thousand, respectively, which have outstanding balances amounting to Php239
thousand and Php325 thousand, respectively.

o. Self-Assessment Function
i. Internal Audit and Compliance Function

The internal audit function which shall be performed by an Internal Auditor conducts
independent and objective internal audit activities designed to add value to and improve the
Bank’s operations and helps to accomplish its objectives by providing a systematic and
disciplined approach in the evaluation and improvement of the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes through which the Board, senior management,
and stockholders shall be provided with reasonable assurance that its key organizational and
procedural controls are appropriate, adequate, effective and complied with key functions of
internal audit include the following:

o Provide an independent and risk-based assurance service to the Board, Audit Committee
and Management, focusing on reviewing the effectiveness of the governance and control
processes in (i) promoting the right values and ethics, (ii) ensuring effective performance
management and accounting in the organization, (iilj communicating risk and control
information, and (iv) coordinating the activities and information among the Board, external
and internal auditors, and Management;

o Perform regular and special audit as contained in the annual audit plan and/or based on the
bank’s risk assessment;

o Review, audit and assess the efficiency and effectiveness of the internal control system of all
areas of the Bank;

o Evaluate operations or programs to ascertain whether results are consistent with
established objectives and goals; and whether the operations or programs are being carried
out as planned;

o Evaluate specific operations at the request of the Board or Management, as appropriate;
and

o Monitors and evaluate governance processes.

The compliance officer remains sufficiently independent of the operations on which she
conducts compliance testing and evaluation to enable him/her to perform his/her duties in a
manner, which facilitates impartial and effective professional judgments and recommendations.
The compliance officer has no operational responsibilities and reports directly to the Audit
Committee during its monthly meetings. The report refers to the compliance risk assessment
that has taken place during the reporting period, including any changes in the compliance risk
profile based on relevant measurements such as performance indicators, summary of any
identified breaches and/or deficiencies and the corrective measures recommended to address
them, and report on corrective measures already taken.

ii. Review of Effectiveness and Adequacy of the Internal Control System

The Audit Committee provides assistance to the Board of Directors in reviewing the
reports of the Internal Audit Department covering the results of assessment on the adequacy
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and effectiveness of internal controls, risk management and governance processes, and in
overseeing the financial management processes, the systems of internal accounting and
financial controls, the performance and independence of the external and internal auditor, and
annual independent audit of the Banks financial statements.

Internal control and risk management are further strengthened with the Board of
Directors’ approval of the Audit Committee recommendations arising from periodic review of
Internal Audit, management reports and consultation with the Bank’s frontline and support
units.

p. Dividend policy

Shareholders receive dividends as may be decided by the Board of Directors. The decision to declare
dividends depends on factors such as the profitability of the bank operations and subject to the
requirements of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas. IRBI shall be compelled to declare dividends when its
retained earnings shall be in excess of 100% of its paid-in capital except:

a. when the Bank Is prohibited by regulators or under any loan agreement with any financial institution
or creditor to declare dividends without its consent and such consent has not been secured.

b. when such retention is clearly necessary under special circumstances obtaining in the Bank, such as a
need for special reserves for possible contingencies.

c. when justified by definite corporate expansion projects or programs approved by the Board.

q. Corporate Social Responsibility

Every school graduation month, to inspire the young achievers of Imus, the Bank offers cash gifts in the
form of a savings deposit account to all the valedictorians of different schools in the Municipality. It also
participates in community activities for the youth like basketball tournament.

r. Consumer Protection Practices

i. Role and Responsibility of the Board and Senior Management

The Board sees to it that there is an avenue for clients to obtain help with regard to perceived
shortcomings or defects in the services rendered by the Bank. The Board and Senior
Management are responsible for developing the Banks consumer protection strategy and
establishing an effective oversight over the Bank’s consumer protection programs. The Board
approves the consumer assistance policies and procedures, ensures its compliance, and
provides adequate resources devoted to consumer assistance. While Senior Management is
responsible for the implementation of the consumer protection policies approved by the Board,
the latter shall be responsible for monitoring and overseeing the performance of Senior
Management in managing the day to day consumer protection activities of the Bank.

ii. Consumer Protection Risk Management System of the Bank

The CPRMS is a means by which the Bank can identify, measure, monitor, and control consumer
protection risks inherent in its operations. These include both risks to the financial consumers
and the Bank.
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To address this risk, the Bank develops and maintains a sound compliance management system
that is integrated into the overall risk management strategy of the bank. Ultimately, compliance
should be part of the daily routine of management and employees of the Bank.

Compliance management system is commonly comprised of three interdependent elements:

o Board and management oversight - The Board and Senior Management should be
responsible for developing and maintaining a sound CPRMS which should be periodically
reviewed for its effectiveness, including how findings are reported; whether the audit
mechanisms is in place and the quality and timeliness of the information provided is
adequate. The Board and Senior Management must also make certain that CPRMS
weaknesses are addressed and corrective actions are taken in a timely manner.

o Compliance program — aims to ensure the adherence to the existing policies and
procedure, relevant banking laws, rules and regulations of the regulatory bodies to
prevent violations.

o Compliance audit - Independent of the compliance function, should review the Bank's
consumer protection practices, adherence to internal policies and procedures, and
compliance with existing laws, rules and regulations.

o Training - The Human Resources Department and respective business units should
ensure that all relevant personnel specifically those whose roles and responsibilities
have customer interface, receive specific and comprehensive training that reinforces
and helps implement written policies and procedures on consumer protection. The
training program should be able to address changes in consumer protection laws, rules
and regulations, and policies and procedures, and should be provided in a timely
manner.

iii. Consumer Assistance Management System

The Bank has a designated Consumer Assistance Officer in every branch and branch-lites to
handle the complaints of the Financial Consumers who are dissatisfied with its financial products
or services under the direct supervision of Vice President-Operations with defined roles and
responsibilities in handling consumer concerns as follows:

o Main Office - Manager for all CASA and administrative related issues, Loans Head
for all loans related issues

o Branch Offices — Manager for all CASA and administrative related issues of their
respective branch.

Duties and Responsibilities:

o Receive and acknowledge consumer concerns;
o Record concerns in a Register/Database;
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Make an initial review and investigation of concerns;
Provide official reply to consumer

Request client feedback
Prepare and submit report to the Operations Group Head.

12023

Name Position
Jose P, Crisostomao, Jr. President
Alejandro B. Saulog, Jr. Chairman
Susan Pearl D. Villanueva Vice- President
Sandra B. Topacio Treasurer
Enrique K. Sauler, Jr. Corporate Secretary/IT Officer
Maria Consuelo G. Matro Compliance Officer
Arlene E. Ramirez Internal Auditor
Susan Z. Delos Santos Chief Operating Officer
Allan S. Sarreal Loans Head
Earvin Noel C. Virata Accounting Head
Maria Kriztine M. Dayrit Head Cashier

Roberto T. De Guzman

Manager- Main Office

Daryll John R. Reno

Officer-in-Charge — Market Branch

Katherine D. Benedicto

Manager- Molino Branch

Angelo F. Villafuerte

Manager- Salawag Branch

b. List of major stockholders including nationality, percentage of stockholdings and voting status

Name of Stockholder Nationality % of Stockholdings Voting Status
Oscar F. Tirona Filipino 3.75% Voting
Earl Patrick V. Benedicto Filipino 1.90% Voting
RASC Holdings Phils, Inc. Filipino 1.84% Voting
Jose P, Crisostomo, Jr. Filipino 1.77% Voting
Marianne Alexandra V. Filipino 1.51% Voting
Benedicto
Ma. Cristina D. Tirona Filipino 1.45% Voting
Conrado P. Crisostomo Filipino 1.45% Voting
Emiliana p. Crisostomo Filipino 1.43% Voting
Pilar P.  Crisostomo- Filipino 1.43% Voting
Hernandez
Gloria Juana P. Filipino 1.43% Voting
Crisostomo-Pollock
Katherine R. Benedicto Filipino 1.42% Voting
Eduardo E. Sayoc Filipino 1.39% Voting
Eric Jude V. Benedicto Filipino 1.31% Voting
Jesus Eugenio D. Filipino 1.14% Voting
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Villanueva

Agerico M. Sayoc Filipino 1.12% Voting

Lynne Grace T. Alviola Filipino 1.07% Voting

Rene Antonio V. Filipino 1.04% Voting

Benedicto

Ma. Rosabel G. Villanueva Filipino 1.00% Voting

c. List and description of products and services offered

Loans Agricultural/Agrarian, SME, Salary/Consumption,
Housing, Vehicle, Business, Doctors, Corporate Loans

Deposit Savings Deposit Regular, Special Savings, Current
Accounts Regular, Savings Deposit with Automatic
Transfer Arrangement, Foreign Currency Deposit

Safe deposit box services

d. Bank Website

The bank website is at www.imusrb.com

e. List of banking units as of Dec. 31, 2023

Bank Office

Location

Contact Number

1. Main Office

Cor. Col. M. Sapinoso& Capt. |.
Bella Sts,, Poblacion I-C, City of
Imus, Cavite

(046) 471-4519
Tel/Fax: (046) 471-0713
(046) 471-3358

2. Market Branch

Imus Public Market, City of Imus,
Cavite

(046) 471-4415
Tel/Fax: (046) 471-2160

3. Molino Branch

Moaolino Road, Malino i1,
City of Bacoor, Cavite

(046) 517-2638
Tel/Fax: (046) 477-0828

4. Salawag Branch

CINI Bidg. L1 B1 Sterling Nile,
Golden City, Salawag, City of
Dasmarifias, Cavite

Tel/Fax: (046) 436-0540

5. Mauban Branch-lite Unit

Plaridel Cor. Quezon Sts., Brgy. Lual
(Poblacion), Mauban, Quezon

Tel/Fax: (042) 717-9180

6. Balayan Branch-lite Unit

Caoibes 5t. Brgy. 2, Balayan,
Batangas

Tel/Fax: (043) 741-5825

7. Audited Financial Statements (AFS) with Auditor’s Opinion

Page 73
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IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.
CORNER COL.M. SAPINOSO and CAPT. |. BELLA STS
POBLACION I-C, CITY OF IMUS, CAVITE

Audited Financial Statements
December 31, 2023
(with comparative figures of 2022)

and

Independent Auditor's Report

Philippine Peso

Edgardo M. Molina
Certified Public Accountant
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imus Rural Bank, Inc.

Comer Col M. Sapinoso and Capt | Belia Sts
Pobiacion I-C, City of imus, Cavite
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of IMUS RURAL BANK, INC. is responsible for all informaton and representations
contained in the financial statements as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 and for each of the two years i the
penod ended December 31 2023 in accordance with the prescnbed financial reporting framework indicated
therein.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. This
responsibility includes designing and implementing intemal controls relevant 1o the preparation and fawr
presentation of financial statements that are free from matenal misstatement. whether due to fraud or emor,
in the circumstances.

In prepanng the financial statement, management 1S responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem, disciosing, as applicable, matters related 10 going concem and using the going
concern basis of accounting uniess management either intends to iquidate the Company or o cease
operation, or has no reakistic alterative but to do so.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein. and submits the same o the stockholders.

Edgardo M. Molina, CPA. ihe independent auditor appointed by the stockhoigers for the penod December
31, 2023 has audited the consolidated financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Augiting, and in his reports to the stockholders, have expressed his opinion on the faimess of
presentabon upon compietion of such examnation.

-

/
Name of the Chairman: ALEJANDRO B. SAULOG, JR.

-

Signature:

Name of the President: JOSE P. CRISOSTOMO, JR.
Signature: M“f‘w
Name of the Treasurer: SANDRA B. TOPACIO

Signed this 26th day of Apail 2024
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| have audited the accompanying financial statements of IMUS RURAL BANK, INC. which comprse the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the siatement of operation, stalement of
changes in equity and statement of cash flow for the year then ended. and notes 1o the separale financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Bank as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flow for the
years then ended in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS), as modified by the
application of the financial reporting reliefs issued by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) and approved by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staternents
section of my report. | am independent of the Bank in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my
audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. | believe that the audit ewdence | have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises reports by management
but does not include the financial statements and my auditor's report thereon

in my opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with full Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (for large and public interest entibes) and for such
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EDGARDO M. MOLINA
Certified Public Accountant

intemal control as management determines is necessary o enable the preparation of financial statement
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

mwmmmmhmmwsmm

MmeaehobﬂnWmmmmmaﬁnmsaaMm
mmmﬂmmumbm«m.mhmnmaﬂnmmm
includes our opinion. Rmﬂmisahighleuﬁdmm,hﬂismammam
mmmmmmammammmum.
MmaﬁeﬂﬁaﬂamﬂmMMtMuhm
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

mmdmmhmmmlmmmmmm
skeplicism throughout the audit. | also:

. mwmmm:fmmmnwm.mmn
mmm:wmmmqumm.mmm

. %dehﬂnﬂmhﬂmﬁnﬂththwwm
M@Wmhm.mmhMWdaMmmﬁmmh
effectiveness of the Company's intemal control.

. EWMdemmmwmmdmm
asﬁrnaiasar:dralahddischamsmadebymmagemem.

- Mmthdm‘amthmbﬁdm&g
m.wmmmmm.Mammnmmwmu
umﬂhmemﬂﬁmﬁththfsMhmMmaMm.
mmmmaamumnyams.lmmmmmmmnhmymﬁnm
mmmmmmmmmsmﬁm&scmummmmm.bm
my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company fo cease to continue as a
going concemn.

Blk 10, Lot 26, Kroner Street, Villa Carolina |, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City; 2281 Flerida 5t., Pandacan, Manila
Telephone No: (632) 8257145; Mobile No: (0917) 6283163 / (0917)6290499; Email: emmalinaconsultancy@gmail.com
= Page %
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Certified Public Accountant

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with govemnance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in interal
control that | identify during my audit.

| also provide those charged with govemnance with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters that
were of most significant in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. | describe these matters in my auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter
Mmthmwﬁ&dhwmﬁ&mﬁmaﬁmmdd@gmmﬂ
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits.

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as
a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Regulations 15-2010 in the Notes to
mwmsmmwmdmmmwamammdm
basic financial statements. mwhmmsmmmdmmtd
mmmm.aﬂhasbaenmmcmmﬂemdiﬁmm“mﬁadmmaﬂlofﬂw
basic financial statements. In my opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

1

EDGARDO M. MOLINA
TIN No. 123-467-133-000
Certificate No. 0039419 valid until September 1, 2026
BOA/PRC Certificate No. 2577, valid until September 1, 2024
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005012-001-2022, valid until September 27, 2025
BSP Accrediiation No. 39419-BSP (Category C), issued March 26, 2020,
valid for a period cf five (5) years to engage in the audit of 2019 to 2023 financial statements
CDA Accreditation Ne: CDA-CEA No. 463, valid until April 7, 2024
PTR No. 10521794, issued January 4, 2024 at Muntiniupa City

Apnl 15, 2024
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CERTIFICATION
The Stockholders and Board of Directors

Imus Rural Bank, Inc.

Comer Col. M. Sapinoso and
Capt. |. Bella Sts. Poblacion I-C,
City of Imus, Cavite

Thisistomrﬁb;maINOmawﬂalweaknassorbreamhtheintemalmtmiandrisknmmntsysbm
was noted in the course of audit of IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.

mmswmmmmmmmmmmmmmmdwm
for Banks.

e
EDGARDO M. MOLINA
TIN No. 123-467-133-000
CPA Certificate No. 0039419 valid until September 1, 2026
B Certificate No. 2577, valid until September 1, 2024
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005012-001-2022, valid unil September 27, 2025
BSP Accreditation No. 39419-BSP (Category C), issued March 26, 2020,
valid iuapahdofﬁue(ﬁ)yeashengagemmeaﬂnofmwwmwmu
CDA Accreditation No. CDA-CEA No. 463, valid until April 7, 2024
PTR No. 10521794, Issued January 4, 2024 at Muntiniupa City

April 15, 2024

._lb APR <uéd

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME, on the ___day of 2024 by affiant who
axhlbitedhmhisvalidPasspmuiﬂ:No.P%?Bmw&uedm , 2019 and valid up to

October 28, 2029.

Doc.No. RAUL JOHN Y. TAREDO

rage Ko, % UNTIL DECEMBER 31, 2025

Book No. PTRNO. 2510325 / 01-23-24 QUEZON CITY

Series of 2024 IBP LIFETIME NO. G267 RSM / ROLL NO. 40849
MCLE COMPUANCE NO. Vi-00.3042/ VALID UNTL 04142025

Page 29
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CERTIFICATIOH
The Officer-i
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas
Malate, Manila

|nmmmmmnmlmmmlm.wmmmmmemdm
1?4ﬂmmBMmmhmdmwmaMIWymmfyﬂw
following:

Tala

1) Thalhmwwmymwbauﬂﬂnmmmmdﬂusm
MM..mMuayEﬁ.M#aﬂhadfnishadhemdﬂmm15.2024.

2) memmmummmmamwm&nma
Mhﬂnhﬂmﬂmkdaﬂrhkmmﬂammudhhmdmm
ﬁhMmeﬁnB&aﬂdeM?ﬂ.mﬂ.

nmﬁqvqmydhadahﬁwwmmmmm&mmﬂﬁmw
mmmmmsmmdmmwmmm
spwfndnﬂaeCndedeMEmiesbrCerﬁﬁadPubﬁcAmms.

6) Mmmmmmmmﬂmiumtmsmmofmm,as
amended by Circular No. 1074 series of 2020,

7) Thatlhavenomtnnponondbmmyofmaanaltmad\oﬂawstSPmbsand
regtdaﬁanﬂldIasmcapiﬂadeqmcyraﬁoaﬂmmmmmksmddassﬁuﬁm.

8) Thallhmmmponm&dhgsragadhgwpumegommm;

9) Thatlhavemnpouragmﬁ:gbminaﬁmmresignaﬁmasemrnalm.

= Page 30
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Public Accountant

10.)ThatlhauemtonpwtwimmspectmmmnalhreachofBSPnﬂesmmmﬁ
but not limited to prescribed capital and liquidity ratios, significant deficiency in allowance for
mmas'mmmin!arv&emmlmﬁm.m
vulnerabilities to money laundering and countering the financing of terrorism; and

1) Twlmmmmwmmmwmﬁmmmmm
matmayraqui’eurgentacﬁmbyﬂnBSP.whimeverisapplm.

nhhmmMMMMWﬁydemmmmsbamdmmmm
umdmwdeﬂwumdhmumﬁmmmSMmW@

Thesewﬁﬁmﬁmsaeb&ngﬁsmdhmpﬁamﬁhhemquimmﬁby&mﬂsphmuumm
o!auditedfmandalstatamtsmmmnwm&mdmralbmk_

v 4

W

EDGARDO M. MOLINA
TIN No. 123-467-133-000
A Certificate No. 0039419 valid until September 1. 2026
BOA/PRC Certificate No. 2577, valid until September 1, 2024
BIR Accreditation No. 08-005012-001-2022, valid until September 27, 2025
BS_P Accreditation No. 39419-BSP (Category C), issued March 26, 2020,
vahdiorapeﬁodolﬁm(ﬁ)yeatswmgageinthemdﬂdm19to2023haﬂdshtements
CDA Accreditation No. CDA-CEA No. 463, valid until April 7, 2024
PTR No. 10521794, Iscued January 4, 2024 at Muntinlupa City

Apnil 15, 2024

A ARR cucd
SUI_SS_CRIBED AND SWORN TO BEFORE ME. on the day of 2024 by affiant who
exhibited to me his valid Passport with No. P3678818B issued on October 29, 2018 and valid up to
October 28, 2029

2 RAULJOHN Y. TAREDO
ic
Doc No.: UNTIL DECEMPER
Page No" g7 PTRNO. 25,0325 /01 zgjjqi%sm
i IBP LIEETIME No. 6287 o

Book No': 8 RSM/RoLL NO. 40849
Series of 2024 COMPLANCE N, VI 013342/ VAL UNTL 04 ¢ 3

Bk 10, Lot 26, Kroner Street, Villa Carolina I, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City; 2281 Flerida 5t., Pandacan, Manila
Telephone No: (632) RZ57145- Mohilo Nin: IN01 71 £9021£3 § InnaMesmnann, = s
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EDGARDO M. MOLINA
Certified Public Accountant
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

FOR SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors
IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.

Comer Col. M. Sapinoso and Capt. |. Bella Sts.
Poblacion I-C, Ciy of Imus, Cavite

| 'have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards of Auditing, the financial statements
of IMUS RURAL BANK, INC. as at and for the taxable year ended December 31, 2023 on
which | issued my report thereon dated April 15, 2024. My audit was made for the purpose of
forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The Supplementary
Schedule on Financial Soundness indicators including their definitions, formulas, and
calculation, and their appropriateness or usefulness to the intended users, are the
responsibility of the Bank's management.

These financial soundness indicators are not measures of operating performance defined by
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) and may not be comparable to similarly titled
measures presented by other banks. This schedule is presented for the purpose of complying
with the Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission and is not a required part of the basic financial statements prepared in
accordance with PFRS. The components of these financial soundness indicators have been
traced to the Bank's financial statements as at December 31, 2023 and no material exceptions
were noted.

EDGARDO M. MOLINA

TIN No. 123-467-133-000

CPA Certificate No. 0039419 valid until September 1, 2026

BOA/PRC Certificate No. 2577, valid until September 1, 2024

BIR Accreditation No. 08-005012-001-2022, valid until September 27, 2025

BSP Accreditation No. 39419-BSP (Category C), issued March 26, 2020,

valid for a penod of five (5) years to engage in the audit of 2019 to 2023 financial statements
CDA Accreditaiion No. CDA-CEA No.463, valid until April 7, 2024

PTR No. 10521794, Issued January 4, 2024 at Muntiniupa City

April 15, 2024

Bik 10, Lot 26, Kroner Street, Villa Carolina |, Tunasan, Muntinlupa City; 2281 Flerida 51., Pandacan, Manila
Telephone No: (632} 8257145; Mobile No: (0917) 6283163 / (0917)629049%; Email: emmolinaconsultancy@gmail. com
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imus Rural Bank, Inc.

Corner Col. M. Sapinoso and Capt. |. Bella Sts.
Poblacion |-C. City of imus, Cavite
STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The management of IMUS RURAL BANK, INC is responsible for all mformaton and representations
contained in the Annual income Tax Retum as of December 31, 2023 The Management is likewse
responsible for all informabon and representations contaned in the financial statements accompanying the
(Annual income Tax Retum or Annual Information Return) covenng the same penod. Furthermore, the
Management is responsible for ail information and representations contained i all the other tax returns filed
for the reporting penod. including, but not limited, to the percentage tax returns. withholding tax retumns,
documentary stamp tax retums. and any and all other returns.

In tis regard, Management affiims that the attached audited financial stalements for the year ended
December 31, 2023 and accompanying Annual Income Tax Retum are in accordance with the Books and
records of the Bank are complete and correct in all matenal respects

Management likewsse affirms that

The Annual Income Tax Retum has been prepared n accordance with he prowisions of the Nabonal intemal
Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulabons and other issuances of the Department of Finance
and the Bureau or Intemal Revenue,

Any dispanty of figures in the submitted reports ansing from the preparaton of the financial stalements
pursuant o financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax retum pursuant lo tax
accounting rules nas been reported as reconciling items and maintained in the Company s books and records
in accordance with the requirements of Revenue Regulation No 8-2007 and other relevant issuance, and

Thal. the Bank has filed all applicable tax retums, reports and statements required 1o be filed under the
Philippine Tax Laws for the reporting period, and all taxes and other imposiions shown thereon o be due
and payabie have been pad for the reporting period, except those contesied in good faith.

Procaas

Signature: ! o
Name of the Charman' ALEJANDRO B. SAULOG. JR

M
Signature. —
Name of the President JOSE P. CRISOSTOMO, JR

{4

Signature [ H A
Name of the Treasurer " SANDRA B. TOPACIO

Signed this _26in day of Apni 2024
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Certified Public Accountant

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
BUREAU OF INTERNAL REVENUE

The Board of Directors

Imus Rural Bank, Inc.
Comer Col. M. Sapinoso and
Capt. |. Bella Sts. Poblacion I-C,
City of Imus, Cavite

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Imus Rural Bank, Inc. as at December 31,
2023 and 2022 and for the years then ended, on which | have rendered the attached report dated April
15, 2024.

In compliance with Revenue Regulations V-20, | am stating the following:

1. That | am not related by consanguinity or affinity to the president, manager or principal
stockholders of the Company.

2. That | have no financial interest to the Corporation or any family relationships with its
management.

3. The taxes paid and or/accrued by the Company during the years are shown in the Schedule of
Taxes and Licenses attached to the Annual Income Tax Retum.

—

-

M. MOLINA
TIN Ng. 123-467-133-000
CPA Certi No. 0039419 valid until September 1, 2026

BOAPRC Certificate No. 2577, valid until September 1, 2024

BIR Accreditation No. 08-005012-001-2022, valid until September 27, 2025

BSP Accreditation No. 39419-BSP (Category C), issued March 26, 2020,

valid for a period of five (5) years to engage in the audit of 2019 to 2023 financial statements
CDA Accreditation No. CDA-CEA No. 463, valid until April 7, 2024

PTR No. 10521794, issued January 4, 2024 at Muntinlupa City

April 15, 2024

Page 4 — e
Bik 10, Lot 26, Kroner Street, Villa Carolina |, Tunasan, Muntiniupa City; 2281 Flerida St., Pandacan, Manila
Talankans Mn- (€271 RIST145: Mahile Na: (0917) 6283163 / (0917)6290499; Email: emmolinaconsultancy@gmail.com
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Certified Public Accountant

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT UNDER SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
MEMORANDUM CIRCULAR 13, SERIES OF 2006

1. WWWMMNWMWHM@MWMNMW
by five percent (5%)

In the conduct of our audit for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 of Imus Rural
Bank, Inc., there are no material findings involving fraud or error which will reduce the total
assets of the company by five percent (5%).

2. Losses or potential losses, the aggregate of which amounts to at least ten percent (10%) of the
total assets of the company.

ﬂnmwmmbsseshcumdorpolmﬁalbssesmimmnunlstoallaasumpeimnl[m%)
of the fotal assets of the Imus Rural Bank, Inc.

3 wmmmmmmmmamm.mammbmmm
longer adequate to cover the total claims of creditors.

Thaammﬁdhgshﬂaﬂedﬂmhtﬂmlsdﬂmmnpmy.magomgwmbasbm
no longer adequate to cover the total claims of creditors.

= ———— Page 35 —
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Public Accountant
SUPPLEMENTAL STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
The Board of Directors
Imus Rural Bank, Inc.

Comner Col. M. Sapinoso and
Capt. |. Bella Sts. Poblacion I-C,
City of Imus, Cavite

| have audited the financial statements of Imus Rural Bank, Inc. for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022 on which | have rendered the attached report dated April 15, 2024.

InoompiianoeuimSRCRuleSB.Iamstaﬁngﬂaatsaidwnpmyhasabialnumeroﬂusmkmm
owning one hundred (100) or more shares as of December 31, 2023.

EDGARDO M. MOLINA

TIN No. 123-467-133-000

CP i No. 0039419 valid until September 1, 2026

BOAJPRC Certificate No. 2577, valid until September 1, 2024

BIR Accreditation No. 08-005012-001-2022, valid until September 27, 2025

BSP Accreditation No. 39419-BSP (Category C), issued March 26, 2020,

valid for a period of five (5) years to engage in the audit of 2019 to 2023 financial statements
CDA Accreditation No. CDA-CEA No. 463, valid until April 7, 2024

PTR No. 10521794, Issued January 4, 2024 at Muntinlupa City

April 15, 2024

B E— S — 3 - - -—
8ik 10, Lot 26, Kroner Street, Villa Carolina |, Tunasan: Muntinlupa City; 2281 Flerida St. Pandacan, Manila
Telephone No: (632) 8257145; Mabile No: {0917) 6283163 / (091716290499- Fmail: smmnlinaranciiltanmufamail ~am
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IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.
( omparison of Submitted ( onsolidated Balance Sheet and Income
Statement and Andited Financial Statements

2023

As of December 31, 2023
Submitted Aundited V ariance/ Reason for
Report Report Discrepancy Discrepancy
ANSETS
{ ash sand other cash iienn 12680847 ILb81.847
Due frum Bangko Seniral ng Pilipinas 14,474,604 14474034
Due from Other Ranks 378,609,673 30609573
lavestment Securities a1 Amorineed ( osi 357,004,084 S57.004, 084 -
1Loans and recenw abdes - net 483528931 A A i 13.2764TT) A
Hank premises. larniture, fivtures and -
cquipanent - pet 15,140,903 15,140,903 -
Hights-ul-use msaets - net 4.328.458) 3098 394 1,230,086 ]
Investment property (KOPA) - oet 10.554.002 18,554, 102 -
Deferred tay asset 7955928 1484798 5471130 i
Retirement beaefil masei-nel 15,414,788 191,504 19,223,272 [
Uber asseis - nel 1.6, 6 1, lbs, 0 -
TOTAL ASSETS 1,293,299.970  1,279,852,159 13,647,811
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
e posil Habilities 1,037,545,378 1037 545378 -
Lense hubabities 459,177 3,26k 453 1.262,TH4 ¥
Income lax payable 179 361 157,778 21,542 t
Meormed expeases amd other babilites 3451042 3451042 .
Ubeferred Tax Liabilities 4,050,921 = 4050921 i
Hetirement 8395331 - 5,395,131 G
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,058,151,211 1,044, 420,652 13,730,559
Paid-eny Caputal stock 949, 950200 9 950, 2w -
Retined carmngs - frec TH.650,.239 "A.TiLe8” 181.748) "
Retained carmmgs - reseres §TA485312 57465312 -
Rememutements of junt-cmphos mem definnd . .
Iremelin asset 916,992) (916.992) -
Undivided Profits - -
TOTAL EQUITY 235,148,759 235,231,507 182.748)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1.293.299.970 1L.279.652,159 L3647 K11
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Submitted Audited \ arance/ Keason for
Report Report [Discrepancy Diiscrepancy

ENCOME AND EXPENSE ACCOUNTS

Interest income K3, 143,436 LEMEEREY
= EvEcl SR RerTae
Interest expense 7617331 T S8 41 (29131 1) payresi of mane
NET INTEREST INCOME 75,526,105 TEIM. T 91311

NON-INTEREST INCOME
Gaun from Sabe of Non-financial

anscts-ROPA 866,993 LR -
Fees and Commisssons Income 1,121,486 1,121 486 -
(ther Income 4,566,994 4,566,794 -
6585473 6,855,473 -

NON-INTEREST ENPENSE

L ompensaton innge benefit n.0128™ 20.74%.3352 (2. 453) scordarce e FAT 158
Taves and hoenses 4.174.282 4174282 .
F 98b LR Y
€8 i COMMITHASION CXPeniCS 364, —
Seprvomscs bv mawoet
Other ademimestradsve expenaes 19,510,778 17,95, 746 T Geonarors s I
scrmedaner s A5 189
1 LY AT L O 161 3,573,148 1,230,086) wnd recore amorsawtan
47.516,088 47818 4% (302,506
NCOME BEFORE PROVISIONS 34.565.4%0 33971473 3817

TLOSSESPRECOVERIES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
Impanmment sses

Provisson fiw puibable losses 13.276,676) (32760676} -

INCOME REFORE TAX 3 asasid 30694, % 53817
Income Lan expense 16,144,272) (9. 0K3.007) 193873 offect of [XT AL

NET INCOME AFTER TAN 25, 144 542 21.611,980 31531553
OTHER { OMPREHENSIVE INCOME .
Ttem that will set be reclassified subseqoently
1o profit or loss
Remeasuements of post-emplovment
definad benetit habsliy -
Tax momme | expersc) - :
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 25,144,542 21,611.90% 3.532.553
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Reason for Discrepancy

A. Loans and recewables-net Php475,972 185 and Accrued Interest Income for Financial Assets-Net Php7 556,746
per submitted report were presented as Loan and receivables-net Php486 B05,608 account per Financial Audit
Report (FAR). The difference of Php3 276,677 is due to (b) staggered booking allowances for probable losses (as
presented per FAR) which was reported as full amount in submitted report

Computation:

Loans and receivables - net P 475,972,185

Accrued Interest Income from Financial Assets - nel 7,556,746

Total per BSP submitted report 483,528,931

vs. Loans and receivables - net 486,805,608

Vanance P ‘3 2?6@22

R ———

Variance is due to

Specific Allowance -Submitted Report P (28,432 849)
Specific Allowance - Audited Report (25,156,172)

P {3,276,676)
EEE—————

B. Rights-of-use assels - net-Php4,328 481 accounts per BSP submitted report were presented as Rights-of-use
assets - net Php3,098,394 account per FAR. The variance is due recording of amortization expenses for year 2022
and additional ROUA for renewed contract.

Computation:
Beginning Balance-ROUA P 4,328 481
Less: Amortization Expense
SALAWAG P 628,143
MAUBAN 495,871
CANDELARIA 106,073 1,230,086

C. Deferred tax assets -Php7 955,928 accounts per BSP submitted report were presented as Deferred tax assets -
Php2.484,798 accounts per FAR. The variance is due changes in DTAL for year 2023 (See schedule 1)

D. Retirement Assets-Php 15414788 and Provision P8,3595,331 accounts per BSP submitted report was reported
as Retirement Assets-Net Php5,191.516 per FAR. The vanance is due to the difference between the present value
of obligations and provision and other changes in the retirement plan (see notes 23)

E.Lease Liabilites Php4 529 177 presented as part of Other liabilities in BSP submitted report was reported as
Lease Laibilities-Php3,266 453 per FAR. The variance is due to recording of lease liability payment.

LEASE LIABILITIES:

Beginning Balance P 4528177

Less: Payments net of interes! Expense
SALAWAG P 670,914 60
MAUBAN 431,076.30
CANDELARIA 160,733.50 1,262 724

LEASE LABILITIES END P 3,266,453

Page 39 —_—
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F. income Tax Payable -Php 179,361 per submitted report was reported as Income Tax Payable -Php157 779 per
FAR. The difference is due to changes in income tax due (please see note 24)

G. Deferred Tax Liabilities - Php4, 050,921 and Retirement Laibilities P8 395 331 per BSP submitted was presented
as parts of Deferred Tax Assets and Retrement Assels per FAR

H. Retained Eamings-Free-Php78,650.239s per BSP submitted report were presented as Retaned Eamings-Free-

Php7B.732.987 accounts per FAR. The difference of Php82 748 in Retained earnings free 1s due to adjusiment 1o
current income tax expense and other adjusments that have direct effect with retained earnings

PROPOSED ADJUSTING ENTRIES

Debit Credit

Lease Liabikbes 1,262.724
Right of Used Assets 1,230,086
Retained Earnings-Free 32638
To record payment of lease and amotization of ROUA

income Tax Payable 21582

Deferred Tax Assets 175.726
Retained Earnings-Free 197 309
To record changes in income tax payable and income tax expense

Retained Eamings 1,595 234
Deferred Tax Liabiliies 1,595,934
To record net increase in DTL

Deferrred Tax Assets 231936
Retained Earnings 231,936
To record net increase in DTA

Retained Eamings-Free 626 454
Retrement 626,454
To record cument service cost.

Retained Eamings-Free 204103
Retrement Benefil-Net Assets 2.041.031
To record changes in Fair Value of Assets

Retirement
Retained Earnings-Free 2,267 857
To record changes in present value of retiremen liability 2,267,957

8,223,346 8,223,346
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IMUS RURAL BANK, INC,
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As of December 31
Notes 2823 2022
ASSETS
Cash and other cash items 7 | 12,681 847 P 15.119.852
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 7 14474634 31,789.767
Due from Other Banks L] 370609673 290,839,934
Investment Securitics al Amortized Cost 9 357,004,084 IK8.311.146
[.oans and receivables - net 10 486,805,608 500515406
Bank premiscs, furniture. fixtures and
cquipment - net i 15,140,903 16,989,984
Rights-of-use assets - net Schedule 2 3.098.3% 4 328 481
Investment property (ROPA) - net 2 10,554,102 11632109
Delerred tax assel Schedule | 2484798 3.905.006
Retirement benefit asset-net 5.191.516 7.019.457
(iher assels - net 13 1,606,600 1.704.730
TOTAL ASSETS 1,179,652,159 1.332,155.871
S - e T ———————
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Deposit liabilitics 14 1037545378 ILIOR.817.177
Lease liabilities Schedule 2 3.266.453 4529077
Income Lax pavable 24 157.778 126.054
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 15 3451042 3,065,945
TOTAL LIABILITIES 1.044,420,652 1118536353
EQUITY
Paid-in Capital stock 16 99,950,200 Y9.950.200
Retained carnings - free It 78,732,987 57.120.99%
Retained earnings - reserves 16 574653112 57465312
Remeasurements of post-employment defined - -
benefit asset 916,992) 1916.992)
Undivided Profits It i =
TOTAL EQUITY 235.231.507 213.619.518

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EEEITY

Ser accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

———— Pagedl

r 1,279.652.159

P 1.332,155.871
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IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Years Ended December 31
Notes 2023 2022
INCOME AND EXPENSE ACCOUNTS
interest incoime 17 P 83,143,436 P 66.178.264
Interest expensc 17 7,908,642 5,065,905
NET INTEREST INCOME 75,234,794 61,112,359
NON-INTEREST INCOME
Gain from Sale ol Non-financial
assets-ROPA 866,993 -
Fees and Commissions Income 1,121,486 930.102
Other Income 18 4,566,994 3.911,006
Total non-interest income 6,555,473 4,841,108
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE
Compensation/fringe benefits 19.23 21,749.332 20,225,417
Tuxes and licenses 20 4,174,282 4,466,949
Fees and commission expenses 364,986 458.789
Other administrative expenses 21 17,956,746 17,618,235
Depreciation/ Amoriization 22 3,573,248 3,661,943
Total non-interest expense 47.818,5% 46431333
INCOME BEFORE PROVISIONS 33,971,673 19,522,134
(LOSSES)/RECOVERIES ON FINANCIAL ASSETS
Impairment losses - -
Provision for probablc losses 10 (3.276,676) (7.949.456)
INCOME BEFORE TAX 30,694,996 11,572,678
Income tax expense 24 (9,083,007) {2.334.396)
NET INCOME AFTER TAX 21,611,989 9,238,282
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME . -
Item that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Remeasurements of post-employment
defined benetit liability - -
Tax income (cxpensc) & <
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 21,611,989 P 9.238,282
— —_————————— =
EARNINGS PER SHARE 28 P 21.62 P 9.24

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December 31
Notes 1823 2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income hefore wax P 30.694.9% P 16,245,458
Adjustmenis for:
Depreciation and amortizntion 1 1 schedule 2 3,573,148 3,661,943
Impairment losses 10 3276676 3,276,676
Crain on sale of investment propertics (866,993) =
Imerest on lease liabilitics Schedule 2 291 311 319415
Gain on disposal of bank premises,
tumnitures, {ixiures and cquipment - c
Operating Income before working capital changes 36,969,238 23,184,077
Changes in operating assets and liabilitics:
Decrease (Increuse) in:
Loans and receivables Hy T0.465,019 (210.665921)
Retirement benefil assel 1,827 941 (1.159.594)
Other resources 13 98,130 147203
Increase (Decrease) in:
Deposit liabilities 14 (71.271,799) 29,469,836
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 15 (1,612,903) 1,575,220
Cash (used in) operations 36,475,627 (157,449,179)
Income Tax Paid (5.964,911) {3.9035,740)
Net cash flow (used in) operating activities 30,510,716 (161,354,920)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of investiment securitics al
amonrtized cost # (265.268.000) (228 877.000)
Muturities of investment secuntics ut
amontized cost 8 194,877,000 251,064,000
Procecds from sale of investment properties 1.945,000 -
Acuquisitions of bank premises, furniture,
fixtures and equipment 11 (494,080) (545.612)
Proceeds from sale of bank premises,
fumiture, fixtures and eguipment - -
Net cash flow provided by (used in) investing activities 31,059,920 21.641 388
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liability Schedule 2 (1,554,036) (1,566,017)
Payment of cash dividends - -
Nuaﬂh!nﬂh[m activities (1.554,036) (1.566.017)

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements

141.279,549)
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Years Ended December 31

023 2022
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING
OF YEAR
Cash and other cash ilems P 15,119,852 P 16,384,592
Duc from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinuas 31,789,767 32,262,820
Due from other banks 190,839,934 430,381,690
337,749,553 479,029,102
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR
Cash and other cash items 12,681,847 15.119.852
Due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas 14474,634 311.789.767
Due from other banks 370,609,673 290,839,934
397,766,154 337,749.553
OPERATIONAL CASH FLOWS FROM INTEREST
Interest paid 7.617,331 5,065,905
Interest received 83,143,436 66,178,264

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31
2023 2022

Authorized Capital - P100,000.000.00 divided inio
1,000,000 Common Stock with par value
of P100 per share

Issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2022
999,502 shares

Capital Stock
Balance, January | P 99,950,200 P 99.950.200
Cash Dividends Declared = =

Balance, December 31 99,950,200 99,950,200

Retained FEarnings - Reserves:
Balance, January | 57,465,312 57465512

Balance, December 31 57,465 312 57465312

Remeasurements of Posi-employment Defined Benefit Asset
Balance, January | (916,992) (916,9492)
Total Comprehensive Income - -

Balance, December 31 {916,992) {916.992)
Retained Earnings - Free:

Balance. Junuary | 57,120,998 47882716

Net Income After Tax 211,611,989 9.2318.282

Undivided Profits - -

Balance, December 31 78,732,987 57.120,998
TOTAL EQUITY P 1.507 P 213,619,518

See accompanying NVotes to Financial Statements
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IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2023 and 2022
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

CORPORATE MATTERS

1| Incorporation and Operations

Imus Rural Bank. Inc. (the Bank) was incorporated in the Philippines on February 27, 1951 10
engage in the business of banking authorized under Republic Act (R.AL) 7353, otherwise known
as “Rural Banks Act™ of 1992 and R.A. 8791, otherwise known as the “General Banking Law™ of
2000 and other alhed laws. The Bank operates as a rural bank providing services such as deposit-
taking. loans and trade finance, and micro-finance services under the regulation and supervision
of the Bangko Semtral ng Pilipinas (BSP). The Bank was registered with the BSP on December
23, 1952 1o operate as a rural bank.

On August 28, 2002, the Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) approved the
extension of the term of existence of the Bank for another 50 years from and afier the expiration
of the original term.

Ihe Board of Directors (BOD) approved the establishment of the Bank's extension office
Candelaria, Quezon on August 9, 2018, and in Mauban. Quczon and Balayan. Batangas on May
3, 2017 tollowing the BSP's authorization.

As of December 31, 2022, the Bank has three branches located at Imus Public Markel, Imus Ciry,
Cavite, Molino 111, Bacoor City, Cavite and Salawag. Dasmanifias City. The Bank also has branch
lite unit at Mauban, Quezon and Balayvan, Batangas. There are no new branch offices set up for
the calendar vear 2023, However, the Bank’s Candelana Branch-lite Unit was wemporanly closed
due to relocation. The Bank plans 10 relocate said branch-lite unit in Cavite.

I'he Bank's registered address, which 1s also its principal place of business, is ot Cor. Col. M
Sapinoso and Capt. 1. Bella Sts.. Poblacion 1-C. City of Imus, Cavite

1.2 Approval of Financial Statemenis

The financial statements of the Bank as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023 (including
the comparative financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022) were
authorized for issuc by the Bank's BOD on April 15, 2024

1.3 Addivional Corporate Information
Impact of Russia - Ukraine Conflict on the Bank ‘s Business

On February 24, 2022, Russin stunted its invasion of Ukrmine which caused far-reaching impact
for economics, markets, and businesses. The ongoing military conflict has introduced a wide
range of sanctions against Russia, including cenain Russian entities and individuals and led 10
signmificant casualties, dislocation of population, damage 10 infrastructure, slowdown ol business
operations in both countries, disruption of supply chains and commaodity flows that impact prices
of items such as petroleum products, cercals, won, and steel. In principle, ot cannot be rubed out
that a prolonged conflict between Russia and Ukraine may result in a signiticant slowdown in the
global and Philippine economy and therciore a potential consequential deterioration i the
business outlook for the Philippines.

However, as of December 31, 2023, the IMUS RURAL BANK, INC., whose business is
primarily in the Philippines, has not been affected in a material way by the Russia-1 'kraine
conflict, despite its inflationary impact on commodity prices. disruption  in supply  chains,
and volatility in interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The Philippines remains a

domestically-focused. impon-dependent consumption economy, and  despite the higher

—_— . — - ’
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inflation resulting from the conflict, Philippine Gross Domestic Product (GDP) numbers l
remained relatively strong and resilient in 2023.

The reopening of the economy, the relaxation of mobility resirictions and the resurgence in
consumption spending all contributed 1o this strong GDP performance. This in tumn has led 10
improved loan growth, betier margins from the increase in policy rafes and net  income  growth,
not just for the IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.. but for the industry in general. The Bank
continues to closely monitor developments in both the global and domestic markets.  While
the impact of the conflict has not been material so far, the Bank recognizes that a prolonged
situation of high inflation and interest rates could eventually affect economic activity.
resulting in slower growth and consumpticn. The Bank believes that its established business  and
strong financial condition will allow it 10 weather near-term risks arising from the conflict.

Continuing Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic on the Bank's Business

The COVID-19 pandemic started to become widespread in the Philippines in early March 2020
and its impact has been continuing until the date of the approval of these financial statements. In
2022, the country’s economic status improved with the reopening of local and intemational travel
and the easing of health and safety protocols and restrictions. Demand and supply of products
continued to slowly retum o pre-pandemic levels.

As a result, the overall continuing impact of the COVID-19 pandemic w0 the IMUS RURAL
BANK, INC. has considerably diminished and the Bank's operations have gone back 1o pre-
pandemic levels. With the reduced impact of pandemic-related issues in 2023, the Bank saw more
normalized operations and increasingly positive results as the economy continued with its
recovery.

Management will continue to monitor any potential risks arising from the pandemic, and will
institute measures 1o mitigate these, as needed. Based on recent developments, management is
optimistic that the Bank will continuc to post posilive results consistent with the country’s
economic recovery, and will maintain sufficient liquidity to meet current obligations as they fall
significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern due to the effects of the
pandemic.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarized below and in the succeeding pages. These policies have been consistently applied 10
all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
(a) Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards ( PFRS), as modified by the application of the financial reporting reliefs issued by
the BSP and approved by the SEC in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. in relation 1o the staggered
recognition of allowance for impairment losses over a maximum period of five vears. The reliefs
cover only current-year transactions or events and do not impact the comparative period. PFRS are
adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board, and approved by the Philippine Board of Accoumancy.

Except for the modification described above, the financial statements have been prepared using the
measurement bases specified by PFRS for cach type of asset, liability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that follow.

(h) Preseniation of Financial Statements

—— “Thie Tinancial statements are presented in adentlance with Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) T,
Presentation of Financial Statements. The Bank presents all items of income and expenses in a single
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statement of comprehensive income. The Bank presents a third statement of financial position as at the
btgmnmglaftht preceding period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a
retrospective restalement or reclassification of items that has a material effect on the information in the
statement of financial position at the beginning of the preceding period. The related notes 1o the third
statement of financial position are not required to be disclosed.

(c) Functional and Presemation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Bank's functional and presentation
currency, and all values represent absolute amounts except when otherwise indicated. Items included
in the financial statements of the Bank are measured using its functional currency, the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the Bank operates.

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
Adoption of Amended PFRS and Improvement
Effective Subsequent to 2023 but not Adopred Earty

There are amendments to existing standards cffective for annual periods subsequent 1o 2023,
which are adopted by the FRSC. Managemenmt will adopt the following relevant
pronouncements in accordance with their transitional provisions; and, unless otherwise stated,
none of these are expected to have significant impact on the Bank 's financial statements:

(1) PAS 16 (Amendments), Property. Plani and Equipment - Proceeds Before Intended
Use (effective from January 1, 2022)

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of an tem of propenty. plani and
equipment any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it 1o be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, in profit or loss. The application of
these amendments had no significant impact on the Bank’s financial statements as
there were no sales of such items produced by property, plant and equipment made
before being available for use on or afier the beginning of the earliest period
presented.

(i} PAS 37 (Amendments), Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Axsets -
Omerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (effective from January 1, 2022)

The amendments specify that when assessing whether a contract is onerous or loss-
making. an entity needs 1o include costs that relate directly to a contract to provide
goods or services. Costs that relate directly 1o a contract include both incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.. direct labor and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g., the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract). The amendments resulted in a revision in the Bank's policy to include both
ncremental costs and an allocation of other costs when determining whether a
contract was onerous. The amendments apply prospectively to contracts existing at
the date when the amendments are first applied. Management assessed that there is
no significant impact on the Bank's financial statements as a result of the change
since none of the existing contracts as of January 1. 2023 would be identified as
onerous afier applving the amendments.

(i) Annual Improvements to PFRS 2018-2020 Cycle. Among the improvements, the
following amendments, which are effective from January 1, 2022, are relevant 1o the
Bank:

* PFRS 9 (Amendments). Financial Instruments - Fees in the “10 per cemt’ Tesi for
— Derecognition of Liabilitieg, S B elim——
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The amendments clarify the fees that an entity includes when assessing w the
terms of a new or modified financial lability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liabihity. These fees mclude only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender. including fees paid or received by cither the
borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

* Hlustrative Examples Accompanying PFRS 16, Leases — Lease Incentives

Ihe amendments remove potential for confusion regarding lease incentives by
deleting from the reimbursement relating 1o leasehold improvements as it had not
been explained clearly cnough as 1o whether the reimbursement would meet the
definition of a lease incentive in accordance with PERS 16,

{iv) PAS | (Amendments). Presemtation of Financial Statements — Classification of
Lighilines  as Curremt or Non-current (effective from January 1, 2023)

(v) PAS | (Amendments), Presemtation of Financial Statements Disclosure of
Accounting Policies (effective from January |, 2023)

ivi) PAS B (Amendments). Accounting Estimates — Definition of Accounting Estimates
(effective from January |, 2023) (vii) PAS 12 (Amendmemts), Income Taxes
Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a Single Transaction
(eflective from January 1, 2023)

2.3 Financial Instrument

Financial assets and financial liabilitics are recognized when the entity becomes a party 1o the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument.

(@) Financial Assets

At imtial recognition, the Bank measures a financial asset at its fair value plus or minus. in
the case of a finuncial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL). transaction costs
that are incremental or directly attributable 1o the acquisition or issue of the financial asset,
such as fees and commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets camed at FVPL are
expensed outright in profit or loss. Unless specifically indicated 10 apply 1o either year. the
policies that follow apply to both vears.

(i) Classification, Measurement and Reclassification of Financial Assets

The classification and measurcment of financial assets is driven by the entity s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contraciusal cash low
characteristics of the financial assets. Curremtly, the relevant financial asset
classification applicable to the Bank is financial assets al amortized cost.

Financial assets are measured ot amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

= the asset is held within the Bank's business model whose objective is 10 hold
financial asscts in order to collect contraciual cash flows (“hold 10 collect™ or
“HTC™): and,

* the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, 1o cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal (SPP1)
amount outsianding.

All financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially at fair value
plus transaction costs. These are subscquently measured at amontized cost using
the effective interest method. less any allowance

2 Tnterest income is calfMdbd by applving the effecrive interest rate wthe gross
carrying amount of the financial assets except for those that are subsequently
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identified as credit impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective
interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial assets (after
deduction ol the loss allowance). The interest camed is recognized as Imerest
ncome in the statement of comprehensive income.

The Bank’s financial assets al amornized cost are presented in the statement of
financial position as Cash and Other Cash ltems. Due from BSP. Due from
Other Banks, Investment Securities at Amortized Cost, Loans and Other
Receivables and as part of Other Resources in respeet of petty cash fund which
15 mcluded in the account.

The Bank may irrevocably elect at imitial recognition 1o classify a linancial asset
that meets the amortized cost criteria above s ot fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL ) if that designation elimmates or sipnificantly reduces an

accounting mismatch had the financial asset been measured @ amortized cost.

In 2023 and 2022, the Bank has not made such designation,
Impairmem of Financial Assets

The Bank asscsses iis ECL on a forward-looking bass associated with its
financial assets camied @ amornized cost,

The Bank considers a broad range of information in assessing credit nsk and
measuring ECL., including past events, current conditions, reasonable and
supportable forecasts that affeet collectability of the future cash flows of the
fimancial assets.

The Bank measures loss allowances at an amount equal o lifetime ECL, except
for the following financial instruments which are measured as | 2-month ECL:

« all current loan accounts, except restructured loans:

» deht securities that are identified 10 have “low credit sk’ ol the reporting date:
and,

= other financial instruments on which credit risk has not ncreased significantly
since their initial recognition,

For these financial instruments, the allowance for credit losses is based on 12-
month ECL associated with the probability of default of a financial instrument
in the next 12 months (referred 10 as *Stage |” financial instruments). Unless
there has been a significani merease o credit risk subsequen 10 the initial
recognition of the financial ssset. a lifetime ECL (which arc the expeeted
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering the potential for defaull at any
point during the life of the financial asset) will be recogmized (referred o as
“Stage 2° financial instruments). “Stage 27 financial instruments also include
those loan accounts and facilities where the credit risk has improved and have
been reclassified from ‘Stage 37 A lifetime ECL shall be recognized for “Stage
3 financial instruments, which include financial mstruments that are
subsequently credit-impaired. as well as purchased or originated credit impaired
(PO assets,

I'he key elements used in the caleulation of ECL are as follows:

= Probability of default (PD) it is an cstimate of the likelibood of a borrower
defaulting on its financial obligation over a given time horizon, either over the
next 12 months (12-month PD) or over the remaming lifetime (lifetime PD) of
the ohligation.

* Loss given defaull (LGD) 1 is an estimate of loss arising in case where a
default occurs at a given time (cither over the nest 12 months or 12-month
LGD. or over the remaining lifetime or lifetime LGDL It & based on the
difTerence between the contracival cash flows of a financial instrument due

e et h’ = = N
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&omawmmmnﬂrﬂmkuowummmimimm
the realization of any collaeral. It is presented as a percentage loss per unit of
exposure at the time of default.

the financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation; hence. this is the
mmﬂnthe&nke:pmﬁmbcmtduthctmurdﬁﬁuhmdlencm 12
months { 1 2-month EAD) or over the remaming lifetime (lifetime EAD). In case
uhlmwﬁmlhcmmrlhumnrm:hunbdwlnpmﬂm
current contractual limit) at the time of default should it occur.

The measurement of the ECL. reflects: (i) an unbissed and probability-weighted
amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible oulcomes: (ii) the
time value of money; and, (iii) reasonable and supportable information that is
avﬁmmmmummummmmmm
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The Bank calculates ECL cither on an individual or a collective basis. For
qul-mﬂthmcmﬂmmacdmmmm
financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared credit risk
chllm-isﬁcs.m:hlsbunmihujwdmimummw.mdhﬁskmﬁng_
cnlhmltype.pruhmtype.hmmuchng-oﬂa.-diuduuywnfﬂn
borrowers or counterparties.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Reclassification of Financial Assen

The Bank can only reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business
model for managing those financial assets changes. Accordingly, the Bank is
required to reclassify financial assets: (i) from amortized cost to FVPL, if the
objcctive of the business model changes so that the amortized cost criteria are
no longer met; and, from FVPL to amortized cost, if the objective of the
business model changes so that the amortized cost criteria stant 1o be met and
the characteristic of the instrument’s contractual cash Nows meet the amortized
P

A change in the objective of the Bank's business model will be effected only at
the beginning of the next reporting period following the change in the business
model.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the financial instruments cxpire. or when the financial assets
and all substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred 10
another party. If the Bank neither transiers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Bank recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated linbility for
amounts it may have to pay.

If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a

transferred financial asset. the Bank continues 1o recognize the financial asset
and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received

Maodification af Loans
When the Bank renegotiates or otherwise modifies the contractual cash flows of

loans to customers, the Bank assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different 1o the original terms. The Bank considers, among others:

2023
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= il the borrower is in financml difficulty, whether the modification merely
reduces the contractual cash lows 10 amounts the borrower s expected 10 be
able 10 pay.

= whether any substantial new terms are introduced that wall affect the risk
profile of the loan:

= significant extension of the loan werm when the bormower is not in financial
difficulty:

» significant change in the interest rate:

= change in the currency the loan is denomimated in; and/or,

= msemion of collateral. other security or credit enhancements that will
significantly affect the credit nisk associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Bank derccognizes the financial asset
and recognizes a “new” asset at fair value, and recalculales a new eflective
interest rate for the asset. The date of rencgotiation 15 consequently considered
1o be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation, including for the
purpose of determining whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurmed.

However, the Bank also assesses whether the new financial asset recognized is
deemed 1o be credit-impaired at initial recognition. especially i circumstances
where the renegotintion was driven by the debtor being unable o make the
originally agreed payments. Differences in the carryving amount are recognized
in profil or loss as either gain or loss on derecognition of financial asscls,

As io the impact on ECL measurement, the expected fair value of the “new”
assel is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial asset at the date
of derccognition. Such amount is included in the calculation of cash shortialls
from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of
derecognition to the reporuing date using the onginal effective interest rate of
the existing financial asset.

If the terms are not substantially different. the rencgotiation or modification
does not result in derecognition, and the Bank recalculimtes the gross carrying
amount based on the revised cash flows of the financial asset and recognizes a
maodilication gain or loss in profit or loss.

The new gross camrving amount is recalculated by discounting the modified
cash flows of the oniginal cffective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective
interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asscts).

As to the impact on ECL measurement. the derecognition of the existing
financial asset will result in the expected cash fTows ansing from the modified
financial asset to be included in the calculation of cash shortfslls from the
existing financial asset.

Derecognition of Financial Assets Other than Through Modification

The financial assets (or where applicable. a pant of a financial asset or part of a
group of financial assets) arc derecogmized when the contractual nights to
receive cash flows from the financial instruments expire, or when the financial
assets and all substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
1o another party.

If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues 1o control the transferred asset, the Bank recognizes its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Bank continues 1o recognize the financial
assct and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

S - _,—_ma — -
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Cuarrent versus Non-current Classification

il

)

I'he Bank presents assets and liabilities n the statement of financial position based on
lguadhiny . An asset is current when it is:

* Expected 1o be realized or intended 1o be sold or consumed in normal operating cvele:

# Held primarily for the purpose of trading .

* Expecied 1o be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period: or,

# Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months afier the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.
A liability is current when:

= It is expected to be settled in normal operating cyvele;

# It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

It is due 10 be settled within 12 months afier the reporting period: or,

® There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the lability for at least 1welve

The Bank classifies all other liabilitics as noncurment.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are classified as noncurrent assets and liabilitics.
Finuncial Liabilities

Financial liabilities include deposit liabilities, lease liabilities, accrued expenses and other
habilities (excluding tax-related payables) are recognized when the Bank becomes a party 10
the contractual terms of the instrument. All interest-related charges are recognized as Interest
Expense in the statement of comprehensive income

Deposit liabilities are recognized initially at their fair value, which is the issuance proceeds
(fair value of consideration received) net of direct issue costs, and are subsequently measured
M amortized cost using effective interest method for maturities beyond one vear, less
seitlement payments.

Any difference between proceeds net of transaction cosis and the redemption value is
recognized n the profit or loss over the period of the borrowings.

Accrued expenses and other labiliies are recognized mitially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost. using effective interest method for maturities
bevond one vear, less settlement pavments.

Dividend distributions to sharcholders are recogmized as financial liabilities upon declaration.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the statement of financial position only when the
obligations are extinguished either through discharge. cancellation or expiration. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms. or if the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified. such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original lisbility and a
recognition of the new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized as gain or loss in profit or loss.

ffseriing Financial Instrumenis

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount is reported in
the statement of financial position when there is a legally enforceable right 1o set-ofT the
ruwgntudmﬁmiammiunmuuk-mamrnu.urmliaﬂmamm
settle the liability simultancously. The right of sct-off musi be available at the end of the
mmuhhhmmwmfmﬂm.umMMhrmwmh
normal course of business. in the event of default, and in the event of insolvency or

8

2023

P



' B IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.

) 8
ANNUAL REPORT

bankrupicy; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all counterparties 1o the
financial nstruments.

2.4 Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

Land is stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses, if any, All other bank premises,
furniture. fixtures and equipment are staled & cost less scoumulated  depreciation.
amortization and any impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly astributable costs of bringing
the asset 10 working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvements and renewals are capitalized. while expenditures for repairs and mamtenance
are charged 1o expense as incurred.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line hasis over the estimated useful lives of the asses

as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Transponation equipment 5 1o § vears
Furmiture, fixtures and cquipment 5 vears

Leaschold improvements are amortized using the estimated useful lives or the remaining term
of the lease whichever is shorter.

An assel’s carryving amount is written down immedintely 1o s recoverable amount if the
assel’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Fully depreciated and amonized asscts are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in
use and no future charge for depreciation is made in respect of these assets.

The residual values. estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of bank premises,
furniture, fixtures and equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, & the end of cach
reporting perod.

An item of bank premises, furmiture, fixtures and equipment. including the related
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, 1s derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected 1o anse from the contimued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the nem) is presented under Other Operating
Income in the statement of comprehensive income in the vear the iem is derecognized.

2.5 Investment Propertiey

Investment properties pertain 10 parcels of land and improvements acquired by the Bank in
seitlement of loans from defaulting borrowers through foreclosure or dacion n payment
which are held either 1o cam rental income or for capital appreciation or both, but not for sale
in the ordinany course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for

Investment properties are stated mt cost, less accumulnted deprecation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an investment property comprises its acquisition price and directly
attributable costs incurred such as legal fees, transfer taxes and other ransaction costs.

The Bank adopied the cosi model in measuring its investment propertics; hence, these are
carried al cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value, if any.

Investment properties, except land, are depreciated over a peniod of ten years. Depreciation
and impairment loss are recognized in the same manner as in bank premises, furniture,

fixtures and equipment.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use
and o future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the disposal

—_—e——— = MH — = —
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of an investmen! property is recognized in profit or loss and is presemted as Gain on disposal
of mvestment properties under Other Operating Income in the statement of comprehensive
income in the year of disposal.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediatcly w its recoverable amount il the
asset’s carrving amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Direct operating expenses related 1o investment properties, such as repairs and mamienance,
and real estale laxes are normally charged against current operations in the period in which

2.6 iher Resources

Other resources pertain o other assets that are controlled by the Bank as a result of past
events. These are recogmized in the financial statements when it is probable that the future
economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the asset has a cost or value that can be
measured reliably.

2.7 Equity
Capital stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Surplus, the reserve portion of which is not available for distribution. includes all current and
prior period results of operations as reported in the statement of comprehensive income,
reduced by the amount of any dividends declared.

Re-measurements on post-emplovment defined benefit asset represent the cumulative amoum
of re-measurements on the Bank's post-employment defined benefit plan as reported in the
other comprehensive income or loss section of the statement of comprehensive income,

2.8 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probubly lead 1o an outflow of
cconomic resources and they can be estimated relinbly even if the uming or amount of the
outflow may still be uncentain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events, for example. legal disputes or
onerous contracts.

Provisions are measured al the estimated expenditure required 1o settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period. including the
risks and unceriminties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of
similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required m settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. When time value of money s material.
long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a pretax rate that reflects
market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation. The merease in the provision duc
1o passage of time is recognized as inferest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of
cach reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate,

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be
measured reliably. no Lability is recognized w the hinancial statements. Similarly, possible
nflows of economic benclits 10 the Bank that do not yet meet the recogmbion crilena of an
asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the financial statements.
On the other hand, any reimbursement that the Bank can be vintually cenain 1o collect from a
third party with respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the
amount of the related provision.

2.9 income and Expense Recognition

Revenue is recognized only when (or as) the Bank saiisfies a performance obligation by
transferring control of the promised services to the customer. A contract with a customer that
results in a recognized financial instrument in the Bank’s financial statements may be

LRl
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partially within the scope of PFRS 9 and partially within the scope of PFRS 15, Revenue from
Contract with Cusiomers. In such case. the Bank first applies PFRS 9 to scparate and
measure the part of the contract that is in-scope of PFRS 9, and then applies PFRS 15 w the
residual part of the comtract.

The Bank also eams service charges and fees on vanous banking services, and gains on salke
of non-financial assets. which are supporied by contracts approved by the parties mvolved.
Thise revenues are accounted for by the Bank in accordance with PFRS 15,

A performance obligation is satisfied a1 a point in time unless it meets one of the following
criteria. n which case it 1s satisfied over time:

* the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Bank's
performance as the Bank performs;

* the Bank’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer comirols as the asset
is created or enhanced; and.

* the Bank 's performance does not create an asset with an alfernative use to the Bank and the
entity has an enforceable nght to payment for performance completed 10 date.

The transaction price allocated to performance obligations satisfied st a pont in ime is
recognized as revenue when control of the goods or services trunsfers w the customer. If the
performance obligation is satisfied over ume. the wansaction price allocated 10 that
performance obligation is recognized as revenue as the performance obligation is satisfied.

For revenues arising from vanous banking services which are 10 be accounted for under
PFRS 15, the following provides information about the nature and timing of satisfaction of
performance obligations in contracts with customers, including significant payment lerms,
and the related revenue recognition policies:

fa) Service Charges and Fees - service charges and fees are generally recognized at a point
in time when the services have been performed. These include commissions and fees ansing
from loans, deposits and other banking transactions and are taken up as income based on
agreed terms and conditions. This is included in profit or loss as part of Other Operating
Income. For the income outside the scope of PFRS 15, the nature and the related recognition
policy is discussed below.

thi Gain on Sale of Non-financial Asseis — ginn from assets sold or exchanged is recognized
when the title (o the properties is transferred 1o the buyer or when the collectibility of the
entire sales price is reasonably assured. This is included in profit or loss as part of Other
Operating Income.

{ «) Miscellanenos income — include income from insurance claims, penalties on loans and
loan application fees are recognized only upon collection or accrued when there is a
reasonable degree of certainty as 1o its collectability. This is mciuded in profit or loss as pan
of Other Operating Income.

When payment has become due for completed performance obligations. any amoumts that
remain uncollected from customers as of the reporting date are recognized as pan of
Accounts receivable under Loans and Other Recevables account.

Costs and expenses are recognized m profit or loss upon utilization of the assets or services
or at the date they are incurred.

210 Leasex
The Bank accounts for its leases as follows:
(a) Bank as Lessee
The Bank considers whether a contract is or contains a lease. A lease is defined as “a

coniract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right o use an asset (the underlying asset)
for a period of time in exchange lor consideration.,”
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To apply this definition. the Bank assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether:

= the contract contains an identified asset. which is either exphicitly identified in the
contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made available
to the Bank:

the Bank has the right 1o obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
identificd asset throughout the period of use, considering its rights within the defined
scope of the contract; and,

« the Bank has the right 1o direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of
use. The Bank assesses whether it has the right to direct “how and for what purpose” the
asset is used throughout the period of use.

At lease commencement date, the Bank recogmizes a nght-of-use assel and a leasc
liability on the statement of linancial position. The right-of-use asset is measured al cost.
which s made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability. any initial direct costs
incurred by the Bank, an estimate of any costs 1o dismantle and remove the asset at the
end of the lease, and any lease payvments made in advance of the lease commencement
date (net of any incentives received).

Ihe Bank amortizes the right-of-use asset on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencement date over the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the term of the lease.
whichever is shorter. The Bank also assesses the night-of-use asset for impairment when
such indicators exist.

Al the commencement date, the Bank measures the lease liabality at the present value of
the lease payments unpaid at that date. discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease if that rate is readily available or the Bank’s incremental borrowing rate.

lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed
pavments {including those determined to be fixed in substance), variable payments based
on an index or rate. amounts expected to be pavable under a residual value guarantee and
pavments ansing from options reasonably certain 1o be exercised.

Subsequent 1o initial measurcment. the liability will be reduced for payments made and
ncreased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if
there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

When the lease fiability is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected in the
right-of-use asset. or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to zero.

The Bank has clecied 10 account for any shor-term leases (less than |2 months) using
the practical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the
lease payments in relation 1o these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a
stranght-line husis over the lease term.

The night-of-use assets is presented net of comesponding depreciation as a separale line
item while the lease liabilitics is presented under Other Liabilitics, in the statement of
financial position.

Bank ux Lessor

lLeases wherein the Bank substamially transfers to the lessee all risks and benefits
mcidental 1o ownership of the leased item are classified as finance leases and are
presented as receivable at an amount equal o the Bank’s net investment in the leasc.
Finance mcome is recognized based on the pattern reflecting a constam periodic rate of
retumn on the Bank’s net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the nsks and benefits of
wmhmufﬁemmcmfmdﬁmmghaﬁ.lmmﬁmm
leases is recopnized in profit or loss on a straight-ling basis over the lease term.
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211 Foreign Currency Transtarions and Transactions

The accounting records of the Bank's regular banking unit are maintained in Philippine
pesos while the foreign currency denominated unit (FCDLU) are maintained in US
currency at exchange rates which approximate those prevanling on transaction dates.

Forcign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency
denominated transactions and from the tanslation ot year-end exchange rates of
monctary assets and liabilitics denominated in foreign curmencies are recognized in profit
or loss.

Changes in the fair value of monetary financial assets denominated in foreign curmency
classified as financial asscts at fair value through other comprehensive income are
analyzed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortized cost of
the security and other changes i the carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortized cost are recognized in profit or loss. and
other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.

2.12 Impairment of Nen-financial Assen

he Bank's premises, furniture, fixture and cquipment. investment properties, right-of-
use assets and other non-financial assets arc subject to impairment testing. All other
individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impainment whenever events of
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of those assets may not be
recoverable,

For purposes of assessing impaimment. assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result. assets are
tested for impairment cither individually or at the cash-generating unit level.

lmlmshrwognimdhu:nﬁlmlossﬁldnmbywhichlhmd‘sm
cash-gencrating unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts. which is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use,
management cstimates the expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit
and determines the suitable interest rate in order to caleulae the present value of those
cash flows. The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked 1o the
Bank's latest approved budget. adjusted as necessary 1o exclude the effects of asset
enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for cach cash-generating
unit and reflect management’s assessment of respective risk profiles, such as market and
asset-specific risk factors.

All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the asset’s recoverable
amount cxceeds its carrying amount

2.13 Employee Benefits

The Bank provides post-employment benefits 1o employees through a defined benefit
plan, defined contribution plans, and other employee benefits which are recognized and
measurcd as follows:

tal Post-emplovmem Defined Benetit P'lan

A defined benefit plan is a post-emplovment plan that defines an amount of post-
employment benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent
on one or more factors such as age, vears of service and salary. The legal obligation
for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains with the Bank,
even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan
assets may include assets specifically designated to a long-term benefit fund. as well
as qualifying insurance policics The Bank's defined benefit post-employment plan
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covers all regular full-me employees.  The post-employment plan s
noncontribulory and administered by a trustec individual.

The lisbility recognized in the statement of financial position for a defined benefit
plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reponting
period less the fair value of plan asscts. The defined benefit obligation is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The
present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows for expecied benefit payments using a discount rate
derived from the interest rates of a zero coupon government bonds [using the
reference rates published by Bloomberg using its valuation technology, Bloomberg
Valuation (BVAL)), that arc denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating 1o the terms of the related
post-cmployment liability. BVAL provides evaluated prices that are based on
markel observations from contributed sources.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuanal gans and losses ansing from expenience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions and the retum on plan asscts
(excluding amount included in net interest) are reflected immediately n the
mnffmciﬁpmnhnwimaﬂwgcwauﬁwiudhm
Lminﬁmtknslmwpﬂiodhuﬂkhmm.mhmmh
calculated by apptyingthediscmﬂrﬂeﬂﬂanmhgofﬂ:purhimhstm
isuplmum«n'uihmmnrmm:dmmgﬂ::fqnﬂingpaﬂud. The
calculation also takes into account any changes in the net defined bonefit liability or
asset during the period as a result of contributions to the plan or benefit payments.
Net interest is reporied as part of Imerest Income account in the statement ol
comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of plan
amendment and curtailment.

Defined Contribution Plan

A defined contribution plan is & post-employment plan under which the Bank pays
fixed contributions into an independem entity (c.g.. Social Security Sysiem). The
MhsmhplumiwﬁiguMmmmﬂmcmmmu
pavment of the fixed contribution. The contributions recognized in respect of
defined contribution plans are expensed as they fall duc. Liabilities or assets may be
mwﬂudifmyuemumm:hsmcm.

Termmation Benefits

T«mmmhmfnmp-ﬂhlewhmemwmismdhgﬂ\em
before the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. I'he Bank rocognizes termination
m-mmﬁmammwmmmﬂmm
MwMﬂwﬁuﬂshnWMthbwﬂhhmﬂPﬁsﬂ
and involves the payment of termination benefits, In the case of an offer made 10
emwmhm-jmdtnhms.ﬂnmimkmhufnsﬂmucdhﬁudmﬂm
mbﬂufmpbywscxpmﬁmmuui&t.mﬁmmﬁmchxmmlz
months after the reporting period are discounted 1o their present value

Bummses

MMwmalhﬁﬁnmﬂmamhmﬂﬁm The Bank
mmmtmanmbmmmnmmam
there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Compensuted Absences

Unavailed leaves, included in Accrued expenses and other Habilities account under
Other Liabilities in the statement of financial position, are recognized as expense at

14
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amount the Bank expects w pay at the end of reporting period. Fach regular
alhuﬂmwiﬁmihdmtﬁdnsmhnmdsﬁlmmmhy.ﬁnnfm
vacation leaves are convertible into cash when unused and can be carmied forward 10
the next taxable vear, The maximum vacation leave that can be accumulated by cach
employee s 45 days. Sick leave. on the other hand, s non-convertible but

cumulative.

2.14 Borrowing Caosts

mmmmwmuwmmmhwﬁkhmcymm
except 1o the extent that they are capitalized. Bumhgcum!l‘umdmfit}
atrributable to the acyuisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset (ic.
an asset that mkes a substantial period of time to get ready for its imended use or
sale) are capitalized as pan of cost of such assel, Thecwﬁliuionufbummi_ng
costs commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary mmﬂnmfumwmm
sale arc in progress. Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are
complete.

Investment income camed on the temporary mvestiment of specific borrowings
thmmMiﬁingmhwﬁMMMM
cligible for capialization.

215 Income Taxes

T'nnmmmpimdinpmﬁiutlmmtkamnfcmmnm
&hmdmmmugﬁzdinwumiwimudm&-hmg, if
any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those ¢laims from, or obligations 10, fiscal
%mﬁmmhmmﬁumﬁmm“mhﬁdm
unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They are calculated using the tax rates and
tax laws applicable 1o the fiscal penods 1o which they relate. based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes 1o current tax assets or liabilities are recogmized as a
component of lax expense in profit or loss,

Deferred tax kumhmwlmlwmﬂm&fhmu
thccndnfunhrqmningpcﬁodhﬂwuudtmhuco{m-ﬂliﬂiliﬂesud
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Uinder the liability method.
with certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
mﬁﬂhumuﬂdﬂumdmmsmmhﬂlm
temporary differences and the carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax
cradiulolhce:mﬂm'lispmbﬁlclhalhmhlcpmﬁl*i"bcnaild&lenpinﬂ
which the deductible temporary differences can be wilized. Unrecognized deferred
mmmmumwufmhmwﬂnwmﬂw
Mcnmﬂuihhmwﬂkﬂmﬁnmmubkwftmllbcamhﬂem
allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

lhhﬂmmnﬂliﬂﬂinﬁmmﬂmﬂumm:humumdm
apply in the period when the asset is realized or the linbility s settled provided such
mmhwbecnenuwdurwbmmwel) emacted at the end of the reporting
period.

Thcuwilgmmuofdﬁmedmmismwwld:mdﬂmming
pcrhularﬂmhmdwﬂlemcmnmilispmhﬁedwmﬂicmm&kpmmwill
be available w0 allow all or pant of the deferred tax asset 10 be utilized The
md%m!ﬁﬁmmm&uhmmh
wuuldfulhwﬁmnlltmamrinwhid!lhcnmkexmuuﬂnendnmnming
pwiud.mmmwscukfh:mingmm of its assets and ligbilities.

Mmhﬂmmmmlmbﬂm-tmlmdnummmol
Mexpuminprul‘uwkus.excmmlhcxmnl|hmﬂmlﬁesmhummmimdin
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other comprehensive imcome or directly in equity. In this case, the ax is also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Dreferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Bank has a legatly
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate 1o the same taxation authority.

The Bank establishes liabilities for probable and estimable assessments by the
Buresu of Imemal Revenue (BIR) resulting from any known tax exposures.
Estimates represent a reasonable provision for taxes ultimately expected 1w be paid
and may need 1o be adjusied overtime as more information becomes available,

2.16 Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between
the Bank and s related parties, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. These include: (a) individuals owning. directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, control or are comrolied by, or under common
control with the Bank: (b) associates: (¢) individuals owning. directly or indirectly,
an interest in the voting power of the Bank that gives them significant influence over
the Bank and close members of the family of any such individual; and. (d) the
Bank’s funded retirement plan.

In considering each possible related party refationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2,17 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Bank's
financial position at the end of reporting period (adjusting event) is reflected in the
financial statements. Post-vear end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are
disclosed when matenal 1o the financial ststements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires management to
make judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses,
assets and liabilities. and disclosure of contingent liabilities at reporting date. However,
uncenainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment 1o the carrving amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgments are made by management in the development, selection and disclosure of the Bank's
significant accounting policies and estimates and the application of these policies and estimates,

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. These are based on
management’s evaluation of relevam facts and circumstances as of the reporting date.  Actual
results could differ from such estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized i the period in which the estimate is revisited if
the revision affiects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.
31 Craical Management Judgments in Applving Accounting Policies
In the process of applying the Bank's accounting policies. management has made the

following judgments. apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:
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{a) Evaluation of Business Model Applied in Managimg Financial Instraments

(7))

fc)

The Bank manages its financial assets based on business models that maintain adequate level
of financial assets to match its expected cash outflows, largely its core deposit funding ansing
from customers’ withdrawals and continuing loan disbursements w0 borrowers, while
maintaining a strategic portfolio of financial assets for rading activities consistent with its
risk appetite.

The Bank developed business models which reflect how it manages its portfolio of financial
instruments.

The Bank’s business models need not be assessed at entity fevel or as a whole but shall be
applied at the level of a portfolio of financial instruments (i.c.. group of financial mstruments
that are managed together by the Bank) and not on an instrument-by-instrument basis (i.c..
not based on imention or specific characieristics of mdividual financial mstrument).

In determining the classification of a financial mstrument under PERS 9, the Bank evaluates
in which business model a financial instrument or a portiolio of fmancal instruments belongs
to taking into consideration the objectives of each business model established by the Bank
(e.2.. held-for-trading, gencrating accrual income. direct maiching 1o a specific hability) as
those relate to the Bank s investment and lending strategies.

In addition, PFRS 9 emphasizes that if more than an infrequent sale 15 made out of a portfolio
of financial assets carried at amortized cost, an entity should assess whether and how such
sales are consisient with the objective of collecting contractual cash flows. In making this
judgment. the Bank considers cermin circumsiances to assess that an increase i the
frequency or value of sales of financial instruments in a particular period is not necessarily
inconsistent with a held-to-collect business model if the Bank can explain the reasons for
those sales and why those sales do not reflect a change in the Bank's objective for the
business model.

Testing the Cash Flow Characteristics of Financial Assets and Contimuing Evalwation of the
Business Model

In determining the classification of financial assets. the Bank assesses whether the contraciual
erms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates W cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding. with interest representing
time value of money and credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding. The
assessment as to whether the cash flows meet the test is made i the currency in which the
financial assel is denominated.

Any other contractual term that changes the timing or amount of cash flows (unless it isa
variable imerest rate that represents time value of money and credit nisk) does not meet the
amortized cost criteria. In cases where the relationship between the passage of time and the
interest rate of the financial instrument may be imperfect, known as modified time value of
money, the Bank assesses the modified time value of money feature 1o determine whether the
financial instrument still meets the SPPI criterion. The objective of the assessment is 10
determine how different the undiscounted contractual cash flows could be from the
undiscounted cash flows that would arise if the time value of money element was not
modified (the benchmark cash flows). If the resulting difference is significant, the SPPI
criterion is not met. In view of this, the Bank considers the effect of the modified time value
of money clement in each reporting period and cumulatively over the life of the financial
instrument.

Distinction Between Investment Properties and Owner-oceupied Properties

The Bank determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making its
judgment. the Bank considers whether the property generates cash flows largely mdependent
of the other assets held by the Bank. Owner-occupied properties generaie cash flows that are
attributable not only to the property but also to the other resources used i the supply process.
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The managemeni has determined that the land and improvements acquired by the Bank from
the defaulting borrowers are appropriately classified as investment propertics.

{d) Recognition of Provisions and (ontingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies.
3.2 Key Sources of Extimation Uncertaimty

Presented in the succeeding pages arce the key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have o
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the camving amounts of resources and
liabilities within the next reporting period

al

Determnation of Appropriate Discount Rate in Measuring Lease Liabilivies

The Bank measures its lease liabilities at present value of the lease payments that are not
paid st the commencemem date of the lease comract. The lease paymenis were
discounted using a reasonable rate deemed by management equal o the Bank's
mcremental borrowing rate, In determining a reasonable discount rate, management
considers the term of the leases. the underlying asset and the coononuc enviroament.
Actual results, however, may vary due 1o changes in estimates brought about by changes
in such factors.

{hi Impairment of Investment Securtties at Amortized Cost and Loans and Other Receivables

ich

e — __r'a —_—

The Bank reviews ils investment sccurities ot amortized cost and loans and other
receivables portfolios 10 assess impairment at lcast on a monthly basis. In determimng
whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Bank makes
judgments as 1o whether there s any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from the financial asset or a portfolio of
similar financial assets. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there
has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers o issuers in & group, of
national or local economic conditions that correlate with delsults on assets in the group.

Management evaluates the amoumt of allowance for impairment based on available facts
and circumstances affecting the collectibility of the accounts, including. but not limited
to, the length of the Bank's relationship with the counterparties, the counterparties’
current credit sintus, average age of accounts. collection expenence and histonical loss
EXpenence.

The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timmg of
future cash flows are reviewed regularly o reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

In 2022 and 2021, there was no impairmeni loss recogmzed on the Bank's investment
securities at amortized cost.

Estimation of Useful Lives of Bank Premises. Furniture, Fixtures and Eguipment, Right-
af-use Assets and Investment Propertics

The Bank cstimates the useful lives of bank premises, furniture, fixtures and equipment,
right-of-use assets and investment properties based on the period over which the assets
are expected 10 be available for use. The estimated uselul lives of bank premises,
furmiture, fixwres and equipment, right-of-use assets and investment properties are
reviewed penodically and are updated of expectations ditfer from previous estimates due
1o physical wear and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits
on the use of the assets,

Based on management's assessment as at December 31, 2023 and 2022, there is no
change in estimated useful lives of bank premises. fumiture, fixtures and equipment and
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investment properties during those vears. Actual results, however. may vary due to
changes i estimates brought about by changes i factors mentioned above.

Determination of Fair Value of Investment Properties

Investment propertics are measured using the cost model, The fair value disclosed in the
financial statemenis as determined using the market comparable approach that reflects
the recemt transaction prices for similar properties in nearby locations adjusted for
differences in key sttributes such as property size, zoning. and accessibility. The most
significant inpwt into this valuation approach is the price per square fool, hence, the
higher the price per square foot. the higher the fair value. The Bank engages services of

For mvestment propertics with appraisal conducted prior 1o the end of the currem
reporting period. management determines whether there are significant circumstances
during the intervening period that may require adjustments or changes in the disclosure
of fair vitlue of those properties.

Determination of Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assers

The Bank reviews its deferred tax assets al the end of each reporting period and reduces
the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available 10 allow all or pant of the deferred tax assets w be utilized.
Management assessed that the deferred ax assets recognized as at December 31, 2023
and 2022 will be fully utilized within the coming vears.

Impatrmieni of Non-financial Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of cach asset or
a cash-generating unit based on expected future cash lows and uses an mierest rate 0
calculate the presemt value of those cash flows. Estimation uncertainly relates 1o
assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount
rate. Though management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair
values reflecied in the financial stalements are appropriale and reasonable, sigmificant
changes in those assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values
and any resulting impairment loss could have a matenal adverse effect on the results of
operEions.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Bank has not recognized any impamment losses
on ils bank premises, furniture, fixtures and cquipment and right-of-use assets.

Valwation of Post-emplovment Defined Benefit Plan

The determination of the Bank's obligation and cost of post-employment defined
benefits 15 dependent on the sclection of cerain assumptions used by actuarics in
calculsting such amounts. A significant change in any of these actuanal assumptions
may generally affect the recognized expense. other comprehensive income and the
carrying amount of the retirement benefit asset in the next reporting perod.

4 RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Bank's activithes expose it 1o a vanety of financial nisks and those activities involve the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk s core
to the financial businegss, and the operational risks are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The
Bank's aim is therefore 10 achieve an appropriate balance between risk and return and mimimize potential
adverse effects on the Bank s financial performance.

The Bank's risk management policies are designed 1o identily and analyze these risks, 1o set appropriste
risk limits and controls, and 10 monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-10-
date information systems. The Bank regularly reviews its risk management pohicies and systems to reflect
changes in markets, products and emerging best practice

(L]
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4.1 Risk Management Structure
The following structure shows the Bank ‘s overall approach 1o risk management-
(1) Board of Directors

mmwmmwm&xmmmmlymmiqw
risk strategies and significant policies of the Bank_ It adopts policies and guidelines to
mlheﬂfemdmfmiouingofllu&uﬁwhhlhcendmﬂwofeiﬁmiwly
mdlmhmmmmw&hwhmmh&.mum
to, lending. investing. fund sourcing, liquidity management, personnel administration,
and internal control.

(1) Risk Management Committee

Rbhuwmfumniuuslhebwdhﬂummmmfwme
Mwmmighofhrﬁmmmn{mm. It oversces the
system of limits to discretionary authority that the BOD delegates 10 management,
mﬂu&ewmﬁcf&ﬂimhﬂ:lhﬂ:uuﬂnuwdmﬂlhﬂhnediﬂc
corrective actions are taken whenever limits are breached.

(1ii) Semior Managemen

Smiwumm‘nmpmihkﬁnnhhnpkmemmurhmi:smrﬂw
mdnﬂmadjmmovemlihusinmw. They also ensure compliance with
hwsandmphiouudmsymsmmmdmmm.

{iv) Board Credit Committee

A board level comminee responsible to oversee the credit risk-taking activities, quality
and profitability of the credit portfolio, and credit evaluation process. All eredin
wumnkhqmd&cuﬂmvhglhnhofﬂrCmdui‘mmemh
umim:fwﬁuﬂwwﬂ.ﬁkumﬂtﬁﬂmmmmhqmm
approving limit to the BOD for final approval,

(v) Asset-Liability Management Comminee

A management level commitiee responsible for the overall management of the Bank's
liquidity risks. It monitors the Bank's liquidity position and reviews the impact of
sirategic decisions on liquidity. It is responsible for managing liquidity risks and
ensuring exposures remain within established tolerance levels.

(wvi) Compliance Unit

This unit is responsible for reviewing any legal or regulatory matters that could have a
significant impact on the Bank's financial statements and compliance with laws and
regulations. It reviews the cffectiveness and adequacy of the system for monitoring
compliance with laws and regulations. The Chief Compliance Officer regularly reports to
the BOD.

ivil) Intermal Audn
Imternal Audit (1A) provides an independent assessment of the Bank’s management and

MufﬂﬂmmmMWMwﬂndmﬁ
and controls across the organization. The 1A audits risk management processes

— - h“ e — e — =
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throughout the Bank. It employs a nisk-based audit approach that examines both the
adequacy of the procedures and the Bank’s compliance with the procedures. It discusses
the results of all assessments with management, and reports its findings and
recommendations to the Audit Committee of the BOD

The Bank does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes nor does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Bank
is exposed to are described below and in the succeeding pages.

4.2 Market Risk

The Bank is exposed 10 market risk through its use of financial instruments and
specifically 10 interest rate risk and certain other price risk which resulied from its
operating, investing and financing activities.

(a) Imterest Rate Risk

The Bank follows a prudent policy on managing its resources and liabilities so as to
ensure that exposure 1o fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits. As
a result of these, the Bank's exposure (o interest rate fluctuations, and other market risks.
is significantly reduced. The Bank maintains 100% of its deposit base on shori-term
deposits. Rates on special savings account are usually priced according 1o the amount
deposited. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Bank's loans and other receivables
have fixed interest rates.

(b) Foreign Currency Risk

The Bank has no exposure 1o foreign currency risk as transactions are denominated in
Philippine peso. s functional currency.

ic) Orher Price Risk

The Bank is not exposed to market price risk since it does not have investments carried
at fair value.

4.3 Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to the potential loss of the Bank's camings arising from the inability
to review and analyze requests for credit 1 determine likelihood of repayment. This
includes the failure 10 manage the risk that loss is mcurred if counter party does not
fulfill its financial obligations in a timely manner. Managing credit risk involves
defining the principles and parametcrs governing credit activities at various levels. e,
strategic level, portfolio level down 1o individual transaction or account level.

The following tools, among others, are used in identifying, assessing and managing
credit risk:

* established credit policies, asset allocations and concentration limits. collateral
acceptance criteria, target market and clearly defined approving authorities,

* defined documentation policies of approved credil lines:

= independence of credit control and monitoring functions from the credit risk-taking
function:

= periedic monitoring of individual account performance,

= regular review of the adequacy of valuation reserves:

* active loan portfolio management to determine the quality of the loan portiolio,
including risks associated with particular industry sectors. loan size and maturity;
monitoring portiolio growth, collection performance and delinquency wends, trend of
non-performing loans. concentration risk, and other performance indicators: and.

* close monitoring of remedial accounts,
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{a) Exposure 1o Credit Risk and its Measurement

Past due accounts that exhibit the characieristics of classified loans shall be risk-rated
following the guidelines on credit classification per BSP Manual of Regulations for
Banks, i.e.. Especially Mentioned, Substandard. Doubtful or Loss.

For the Bank’s debt securities, credit ratings published by reputable external rating
agency are used. These ratings are continuously monitored and updated. The PD
associated with each rating is determined based on realized default rates over the
previous 12 months, as published by the rating agency.

ih)  Expected Credit Loss Measurement

These pronouncements from the BSP details the underlying assumptions which also
imclude the criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk. As
a general rule, especially mentioned and substandard underperforming (eg.,
substandard accounts that are unpaid or with missed payment of less than 90 days) shall
be considered Stage 2 accounts, while substandard non-performing, doubtful and loss
accounts shall be considered as Stage 3 accounts. The computation of the ECL also
consider the use of reasonable and supportable forward-looking information. which is
based on the BSP's requirement to look beyond the quantitative considerations (days
past due or missed amortizations) in assessing borrower’s capacity to pay.

In accordance with PFRS 9, the ECL will be measured on either a | 2-month or lifetime
basis depending on whether an SICR has occurred since initial recognition or whether
an assel is considered to be credit-impaired. ECL is the discounted product of the PD,
EAD. and LGD. The ECL will be determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for
each future month and for cach individual exposure or collective segment. These three
components are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.c., the
exposure has not been prepaid or defaulied in an carlier month). This effectively
calculates an ECL for each future month, which is then discounted back to and summed
at the reporting date. The discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original
effective interest rale or an approximation thereof.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs will be determined based on the expected payment
profiles, which would vary by loan product/portfolio. The incorporation of forward-
looking information (FLI) in the assessment of SICR and calculation of ECL. requires
historical analysis and idemtification of key macroeconomic variables (MEVs)
impacting credit risk associated with the Bank’s borrowers and/or counterparties and
the ECL for each portiolio of debt instruments.

PFRS 9 also requires modelling ECL parameters which should be carried out on a
collective basis. The financial instruments should be grouped on the basis of shared
credit risk characieristics. such as instrument type, credit risk rating, collateral type,
repayment scheme, indusiry type, remaining life to maturity, and geographical locations
of the borrowers and/or counterparties. The credit exposures within a panticular group
should remam appropriately homogenous.

{c) Collateral Held ax Security and Other Credin Enhancements

The Bank holds collateral against loans and advances 1o customers in the form of hold-
out deposits, real estale morigage, chattel morigage and other forms of security.
Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of
borrowing and are generally reviewed and updated annually. Collateral is not usually
held aganst investment securities and no such collateral was held as of December 31,
2022 and 2021. For both reporting periods, the Bank has no significant changes as to its
policies in obtaining collateral, and there has been no significant change in the overall
quality of the collaterals held by the Bank since the prior period. The Bank’s manner of
disposing the collateral for impaired loans and receivables is normally through sale of
these assets afier foreclosure proceedings have taken place.
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fdi Dwe from BSP and Other Banks

The credit risk for Due from BSP and other banks is considered negligible, since the
counterpartics are reputable banks. Due from other banks are insured by the Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corporation (PDIC) up to a maximum coverage of PO.S million per
depositor per hanking institution, as provided for under R.A. No. 9576, Amendment 1o
Charter of PDIC.

(e} Loans and Receivables

In respect of loans and receivables, the Bank is not exposed 1o any significant crednt risk
exposure o any single counterparty or any group of coumterparties having simiiar
characteristics. Loans consist of a large number of cusiomers in various geographical
arens.

(1) Investment securities at amortized cost

The Bank's mvestment securities, which are composed of debt securities issued by the
Republic of the Philippines. is not deemed significant given that counterparty is rated at
BBB . based on S&P ratings. The Bank's investment securities are considered 1o be at
Suage 1.

ig) Write-offs

Similar with prior years. the Bank writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it
has exhausted all practical recovery effonts and has concluded that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery of the financial asset. Indicators that there s no reasonable
expeciation of recovery include: cessation of enforcement activity: and, where the
Bank's recovery method is through foreclosure ol collmeral and the value of the
collateral is less than the outstanding contractual amounts of the financial assets w0 be
written-off.

i Modificarions of Financial Assets

In cerain cases, the Bank modifies the terms of the loans provided 1o the borrowers due
10 commercial rencgotiations, or for distressed loans, with a view of maximizing
recovery of the contractual amount of obligation that the Bank is owed 10. Restructuring
policies and practices are based on indicators or criteria which, i the management’s
judgment, indicate that payment will most likely continue. Such policies are
continuously reviewed and updated as necessary.

The risk of defsult of such assets after modification is assessed at the reporting date and
compared with the risk under the original terms at initial recognition. when the
maodification is not substantial and so does not result in derecognition of the original
asset. The Bank monitors the performance of the financial asset subsequent to its
modification. The Bank may determine that the credit risk has significantly improved
after restructuring (in accordance with the new terms), so that the assets are expected to
move from Stage 3 or Stage 2 (wherein lifetime LCL is recognized) o Stage | (12-
month ECL). There were no modified assets held by the Bank during the year.

1) Credtt Concentration

Excessive concentration of lending poses undue risk on the Bank's asset quality. The
Mhlk.mmwmrm“mmmkmm-ﬂkﬂsufm
will lessen this risk. The credit review auditor reviews the Bank's loan portfolio
mﬂb.inhuhhhpdkydavoﬂigsiyﬁfmcmﬂ?mwwum
industry or group of bormowers. 1'umhummemﬂi}nfuhnmfplnﬂtw
keeps its risk wlerance limits on asset quality lower than the mdustry ratio and enforce
a stringent policy on credit evaluation, review and monioring.

Pge
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44 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds available may nol be adequate 10 meet the credit
demands of the Bank's customers and repay deposits on maturity. The Bank manages
liquidity risk by holding sufficient liquid assets of appropriate guality 1o ensure short-
term funding requirements arc met and by maintaining a loan portfolio with evenly-
spaced maturities and cash flows, In addition. the Bank seeks 10 maintain sufficient
hguidity 10 take advamtage of interest rate opportunitics when they arise.
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7. CASH AND OTHER CASH ITEMS AND DUE FROM BANGKO SENTRAL NG PILIPINAS

This account includes the following:

2023 2022

Cash and other cash items P 12,681,847 P 15,119,852
Pue from BSP 14,474,634 31,789,767
P 27,156,481 P 46,900,619

Cash on hand and in vaul consists primarily of funds i the form of Philippine currency notes and coins in the Bank's
vault and those in the possession of tellers.

(nher cash items include cash items (other than currency and coins on hand) such as checks drawn on other banks or
other branches afier the Bank’s cleanng cut-off time umil the close of the regular banking hours.

Due from BSP represents the balance of the deposit account mamtained with the BSP 1o meet reserve requirements to
wive as cleanng account for interbank claims and to comply with existing trust regulations, No interest Income was
revognized in 2023 and 2022 us the Due from BSP no longer bears interest.

8. DUE FROM OTHER BANKS

I'he breakdown as 1o type of deposit follow:

2023 2022
Time P 270,926,903 P OI75.134.8
L urrent 95,678,521 110044621
Savings 4,004,249 S.660419

- ' P__370,609.673 P 290,839,934
e T

9. INVESTMENT SECURITIES AT AMORTIZED COST

I'he maturity profile of this account, which pertains mainly to investments in government securities, is presented below

2023 2022
Within one year P 257.117.054 P 199.877.000
[evond three vears 99,070,125 185,919,179
356,187,179 IB5.T96.179
| namortized premium 816,905 2,514,967
P 357,004,084 P 383311146
= = - — =

Changes in the Bank's investment securitics at amortized cost are summarized below.

2023 2022

Halance at beginning of year P 385796,179 P 407983179
Additions 265,268,000 228.877.000
Matunties (294,877.000) (251,064,000
356,187,179 385.796.179

Unamortized Premium B16.,905 2.514.967
Balance at end of vear P 357,004,084 P 3BB.311.146

—_—

Ihe Bank has not recognized any impairment loss on ifs investiment securitics at amonized cost as management belicves
n the probability of its recovery
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1L LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Ihis account consists of the following:

2023 2022
Receivables from customers:
| cans and receivables P 512278147 P 581,845,112
I neamed imerest and discount (111,144) (86,944 )
512,167,003 581,758,168
Onher receivables:
Sales contract receivable (SCR) 502,811 566,067
Accounts receivable 135,144 323,354
Accrucd inlcrest receivable 4,074,242 4,637,513
4,712,197 5,526,934
216,879,200 587,285,102
Allowance for lmpairment (30.,073,593) (26,769.696)
P 486,805,608 P 560,515,406

Interest rites on receivables from customers rnge from 0.00% 1w 35.00% and 0.00% 10 40.00% in 2023 and 2022,
respectively, Interest mtes on SCR s 12.00% and ranges lrom 12.00% to 15.00% in 2023 and 2022. All
other receivables are non interest bearng, unsecured and wre generally payable on demand.

Total interest income eamed from loans and other receivables amounted to £54.20 million and P48.06 million n
2023 nd 2022, respectively. These are presented as Interest Income on Loans and Other Receivables in the

Statements of Comprehensive Income

I'he Classification of Loans and Receivables as (o Status follows:

23 % 2022 %o
Current P 485,147,508 96.01% P $58.602,532 G600 1%
Past Due 10,890,275 3.80% 22084419 iR, {1
ltems in Litigation 16,129,220 0.20% 1,158,161 0.20%
TOTAL P 512,167,003 100% P 5:&.3:_5,5 12 1M
PAST DUE AND ITEMS IN LITIGATION RATIO 5.28% 3.99%

| vans and Receivables consist of the following as of December 31:

2023 2022

Loans - Gross P 512,278,147 P 581,845,112
Less: Allowance for Credit Losses {28,432.849) 5 (21,609238)
| namortized Discount (111,144) (86.,944)
Loans - Net of Allowance for Credit Losses 564.821.710

and Unamortized Discount 483,734,155

less: General Loan Loss Provision (4,485,202 (4.728,331)
NET C ARRYING AMOUNT P 479.248.862 P 560,093,380
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( lassification of Loans and Receivables as to Interest Rate follow:

2023 % 2022 dy

Below 3% P 5341838 1.04% P 18.620.187 3.20%
S0 10 10% 330,805,106 64.58% 392,600,576 67.48%
10% 10 15% 131,979,909 25.76% 125,970,971 21.65%

| 5% 1 M% 38,823,945 7.58% 3%.381,691 6.60%
209 10 25% 972,414 0.19% 1,302,294 0.22%
Over 25% 4,354,935 0.85% 4,969,394 01.85%
P 512,278,146 100.00% P 581,845,112 100,007

—

{ lassification of Loans und Receivables as to Terms (nel of UID) follow:

2023 Yo 2022 %o

Shin - Term (One vear or less) 1 2,804,830 0.55% P 53,666,236 0.22%
Medium Term (Over | year to 5 vears) 52,557,902 10.26% 23,830,505 4.10%
Long Term (Over 3 years) 456,804,271 89.19% 504,261,427 80.08"6
P 512,167,003 100.00% P 581,758,168 100.00%

Credit Concentration by Industry (net of L 1)

Ihe Bank monitors concentration of credit by industry sector. An analysis of concentrations of credit by indusiny (net of UID)

follives

2023 % 2022 %u
Avgriculture, Forestry & Fishing P 86,722,791 16.93% P 113,691,231 19.54%
Whaolesale and Retail Trade, Repair of Motor
Vehicles, Motoreycles 39,966,749 1.80% 24,196,060 LIt
I runsportation and Storage 15,681,245 3.06% 6,732,077 1.16%%
Real Estate Activities 162,492,313 31.73% 177.788.741 31.56%
Onher Service Activities 63,880,529 12.47% 144,967.432 24.92%
Sanutactunng 3bb4 N8 0.72% 24,456,289 4.200%
Consiruction 29,301 366 5.712% 20,422,963 151%
Accommodation and Food Service Activities 98,684,971 19.27% 64,965,005 11.17%
Professional, Scientific & Technical Activities 7,984,958 1.56% - 0.00%
Humin Health and Social Work Activinies 1.705.048 0L.33% 1,996,303 01.34%
Fducation 2,082,142 0.41% 2.542.067 .44%
P 512,167,003 100.00% P 581,758,168 106000

e BSE considers the concentrmtion of credit exists when the total loan exposure 10 8 particular indusiry or
coviamic seetor exceeds 3% of then total loun porticho

Page 27



~~
| B IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.

f\

ANNUAL REPORT

Tutal

Particulars Current Performing Performing
spnculture, Forestry & Fishing 86334.116 388,675 86.722.791
Wholesale and Retail Trade, Repair of Motor -
Vehicles, Motorcycles 32,709,485 6,971,484 285,780 39,966,749
| ransponation & Storage 15.012,006 69,240 15,681,245
Real Estate Activities 159,446,326 3,045,987 162492313
Financial & Insurance Activitics o
Information & Communication "
inher Service Activities 03,880,529 63,880,529
M lanutacturmg 3,604,589 ENCOR
( onstruction 26,866,007 2,435359 29301 366
vecommaodation and Food Service Activities 94,7k, 179 3.918,791 1 98 684971
Professional, Scientific & Technical Actvities 7,984,958 7,984,958
Human Health & Social Waork Activitics 1.697.626 7,422 1,705,048
I ducation 170,343 1,911,799 1082142
Total 485,147,508 10,890,275 16,1 512,167
A sunmary of the Bank's maximum exposure 1o credit risk on loans and other receivables is disclosed n Note 43.
Receivables from customers {gross of allowance for impairment [osses) have the following types and calegony:
2023 P!,
Current loans:
Small and medium enterprises r 161,109,049 P 254,897,831
wgera and other agri credits Ko, 414088 139,055,530
Individuals for auto loans 13,869,075 16,218,300
Individuals for housing purposes 18,206,636 49,650,218
Individuals for consumption purposes 1,620.362 1,921,484
Individuals for other purposes T1. 742,113 96,859, 1o
{ orporation Non-Financial 22267413 »
485,229,737 558,602,532
Past due loans:
Individuals for consumption purposes 1158,643 4.714.1%1
Individuals for housing purposcs 1970918
Agra and other agn credits 491,735 476,370
Small and medium enterprises 7,030,802 28,060
Individuals for other purposcs 14,396,312 18,023,968
27,048,410 23,242 580
P 512,278,146 P S81.845.112

P ——————————— S eSS S
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Al ol the hunk's loans amd vther recervashles have been revics ed Tor mdications of impairment, Certain s and réceivables
were found 1o be impaired und provisions have been recorded sccordingly A reconciliotion of alloswanve Tor at the beginning
ansd end oof 2023 and 2027 15 as lollow

023 2022
Walance a1 beginning of vear 26,796,016 19,112,304
Impairment lisses 32764676 1276,676
Additional Impatrment - 1,672,780
Heversal - (292.06%)
Balance at end of year 30,073,591 10,768,696

Impairment losses is preented as Impairment Losses in the Statement of Comprehensive [ncome

Computition madke by the Bank pertaiming to allowanee for impairment losses on loans and other receivubles per BSP
pundelines s dhown below
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s e -
fis SUR | b, 18
Vosial rosan vl
wh Lo
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T —— 13 )
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vred b
o = fed
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0 caamne ww e Fa ol Bow b vhe silnstmeresd bs s e o8 el fows fee e 2 0
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In February 2021, the BSP has approved the Bank's roguest for staggered booking allowance for impairment over a
maximum period of five years, specifically on every 315t of December for the years 2021 1w 2025, for all types of credits

extended to individuals end business directly affected by the COVID-19.

The impact on the affected financial statement linc items as of and for the year ended December 31, 2025 and 2022 if
the allowance was measured in accordance with PFRS, without modification for the application of financial reporuing
relicfs issued by the BSP (see Note 2.1 |a} ) is presented below and in the succeeding page.

As Under
Notes Reported {.'hu‘n PFRS
31/122023
Changes in resources:
Loans and receivables - net 479,248 862 {3.276,677) 475.972.186
Deferred tax assets - net 20 3,905,006 {1,420,208) 2 484 798
Net decrease in equity {4,6%6 B85)
Changes in profit er loss
Impairment losses 18 3,276,676 31276677 6,553,353
Tax expense 6144272 1,420,209 7,564,480
Net decrease in net mﬁl 2&
As Under
Notes Reported Changes PFRS
Jinizenz
Changes in resources:
Loans and receivables - nel 565,188,185 {6,553,353) 558.634.332
Deferred tax assets - net 20 2,884,000 1,587 415 4,471,505
Net decrease in eguity 1&‘
Changes in profit or loss
Impairment losses 18 2 984,612 6,553,353 9,537,965
Tax expense (2,334.396) {1,587,415) (3,921.810)
Net decreasc in net Eu-t'lt ﬁﬂi
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Ihe balance of unamintused allowances @ of Devember 31 s presemted below:

2013 222
Additmnal allowance for impasrnent lor staggersd booking. begmning 6551353 9,830,009
Arrtizatson for the scar 132766761 (3.276.676)

Balance at end of year - ¥Mﬂ' &S!BIJ.“J

Creneral loan loss provesson b compated ot 1 0P of the outstanding loan portioho of the Bank, net of non-nsk. recemnvablics
and classalicd loams subyect o spocitic hsan lss provissm. Further, loan loss provision for SCR s oompuied st 1000% of

the outstanding

Ve Banb does nod have any quoted and unguated debt secorities classified as loans and other receivables as of December

s, XS aewd 20022

As at Decemiber 3 1. non-perfommuing, loans (NPLs) not fully covered by allowance for crodil iosses Tollow

o) 2022

Caromas NP1 s 16,129.2120 16475177
NPLs fully coverad by allowance for impasrment 111,657 468) 19,7 i, BKK)
4,471,752 6, 742,290

Collateral and Other ¢ redu § nhancements

Collaterals wre taben mite consideratim dunng the loan apphcation process as oollsterals offer an alternative way of
collectng from the client if a defaull oecurs, The percentage of loan value altached 4o the collateral offered i pant of the
Hank's lesding guidelines Such percentage takes into account safety margins for interest rale exposure and price volatlity

Collaterals are valued acconding to cxisting crodit policy standards and following the lalest appraisal report, serves o
the basis for the amount of the seoured loan facility. The Bank is not permitted 1o sell the collateral in the sbsence of
default by the owner of the collateral i is the Bank's policy o dispose forecloscd sssety o an orderly ouiocr 1
proceeds of the sale of the forechsed assets meladed under lnvestment Properties are usold o roduce of  ropay 1he
vutstanding clam. As pan of the Bank's nsk control on secanity/collateral documentation, standard documents are made
for cach sccunty type amad deviation from the pro-forma documents are subgect to Logal Counsel’s approval prior 1o
A dTHADLE

e tabie below provides the vollatoral profile of the outstanding loan portfohio of the Bank (net of L)
B

wy % 3 %
Vo by Tooal T state Morigh: - RessdentaT T TR [GECaamd T
Sevuned by Bonl Fatane Monggsie - O ommencial 4687263 1A% 61,222 3%
Szsed b boud boate Mongags - AyToultiaral A5 9TALY TASY. AR ELLY AT
Secared Is Chatecd Mortgage IENTH Sel LM% 0, 200 ()
oo b Huobd-e-deposa AT 2
“TOTAL .
The moscments of Allowance for Credin Losses including general boan loss provision follows:
b 2ul
=y =~ 1 TIAGLTIR T T
Wl PR e i b o 2 Taste L% e
e T TF ST '
T F ST
Vs ooty porcfile of dhe Hamd o focoyvsibies [ron castomers Toflowas.
Hald bl hd
T voat and Diow T E T U AN 3B
Heyond one year 3,017 478 | T2A84
7
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Bank Premises, Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment - Net

: <2, and the gross carrying amounts and the
fixtures and equipment are shown below:

ol
= TRANSPORTATH) FINTURES & LEASEINN.D
AN B LI EQUIFMENT E ENT ! EMENT!
ST s O OUIPFME MPROVEMENT LT AL
Balsnce, beginning -
wet of sirumuolsted depreciation
and amartzation 282 fiM HAT) 403 416,003 730,87 1158940 Ty 9K SN
Nelilitnians AT - 155 373
Nilju st s 15 (28H) MY
Phepreciation and amartrstion H
; tingn b the year L) 063, 190 (289,800} (433,747} IM’_ ) Z 343 161)
Balumce, vad - net of
accumulated depreciation
& allow snce fur
probuble lasses 6252600 768,213 26300 TTL2M4 622516 15,140,903
0Im12023
L .2 52 mli 25971493 140, 165 550 14881 928 {444 97 B2 d b sl
Avvmmnlatid depeeciation
anid amariizatios { E7 540 05 (4, 746 485) {13,751 050) 4 186037 (RN NN
et carryving amosnt

EAJ1.300 116,065

R LR

H 163,650 L1 AR 5584977 $5 41002
Memmmnlabed depediabmm
andd i Tizalen | 803 200 £, 49 200 160, 710Nk
Nl £arrying amouwt 4,252, i 1.
02
TFURSTTURE.
TRANSPORTATHY FINTURES & LEASEHOL D
LAND BUITLDING EQUIPMENT EQUIFMENT MPFROVEMENT! 1Al
[LTEGH
Halamer begimming -
wel ol are wmnlated Ik‘h’rﬂnl!-n
P ERT P T T e i P g S0l IS T T K2 1. 715438 N7 el
Nibadrbrans 5600 S
AT TR PPN 2% 12
Ihepawsiatinn amd smarizsime
r%ﬂ o the vear {1,063, 190) (289 B00) (521 816) (554 498) {2429 WM
an
Halasce. end - met of
serumulaled depreciaton
& allowwace lor
ble lusses 6,252 6iW) BASL A0 416,185 TS -l.1 58,5940 s, 299 04
2022 . - .
el 252 #N) 28671 493 11,162,819 13,936 116 L54 T LR L
N Laled dejreciation .
“-ml .......un:u § 14 6 900 {10456 K524 (13229258 (3831 529 {4394 425}
SEl carTy b ammounl [EL3T] 5,493 591 TS 6
i e 4,252 800 25971 493 10,165,650 14,451 926 S50 977 62 416,646
“:..::l:.l::::mm (17.540,090) {9,749 4K5) (13,751,050 14 386057y (45 42002y
el amount 416163 ————

i . e of the Bank's
Under BSP regulations. investment in Bank premises, fumiture, ﬁxtunTs and cquipman ul_mn:lnd not exceed 5P of ihe "
smimpaired capital. As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Bank has satisfactorily complied with this provision

No assets are pledged as collaterals
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12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (ROPA)- Net

I his account represents parcels of land and buildings and related improvements, which are held for capital
appreciation, acquired in settlement of loans. Investment properties are carried at cost less allowance for impairment
and accumulated depreciation.

This account consist of:

Land Buslding Tontal
Vldee-23
p 034002 P 460055 P 15,454 607
vavanice Iof impaTTRen [ 300, 0] [ESLTR TR
woumulaied depreciainm . 14, i, S04 ) 14 B S04 )
ek umi.l simount F 10,854,102 P 1 r 10,554,102
— —— T
HlalDee22
Cumt P 11,932,108 P 4600505 P 16,532,614
Alowance for imparment (300,000 ) (300,00 )
‘coumulaled depreciation . (4,600, 504 ) {4,600, 504)
ol carrying smount r 11632008 F _; r 11,632,109
Aging of ROPA Accounts as of December 31, 2023:
=3 years =5 years but
RUOPA <3 years but < Syears = 19 years =10 years TOTAL
Land . - 10,554,101 10,554 101
Hustlihngs - . - | I
(R EY! 10,554,102 18,554,102
= —

RECONCILIATION OF CARRYING AMOUNTS OF ROPA ACCOUNTS

ALLOWANCE
BUTLIMNG FOR
AND FROBAHRLE
LAND IMPROVEMENTS LOSSES TOTAL

Hoglam e brginvnimg - sei ol

scvwinnlated dopreveston smd

AT TN SIS ] M0 D ) 11,632, 1%
e prusanls V1.0780TT)
Al st
Ad un Depr
hepresvabin and smaortua o
charges for ihe yosr
Haslamir, rad - oel ol socamataied . " oo i

Jrpiocaes & amertates o
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Hhalanex beommng .
L1GR2 108 4,600 505 {300 001 ) 16211011

oo i ated Lo Tas U] ]
e AL 14, el S } (48,0 FH

MAIE!M#M
Halunce Endeng
Cost 10,854,102 4,600,508 {300,001) 15,134,606

Sowmplmend deprecubon amd
5 &
i AT A o e S04 ) i 00 S

Halance, end - 0el sl 1,84, 102 1 {6, ) 10,554, 102
M

| hepreciation on Investiment properiics are presented as part of Depreciations sod Amortization under Uther Operating Expenses
the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

I'he recoverbale amounts of the Bank’s investment propertics used in determining the impairment losses 10 be recognized as
of December 31, 2023 and 2022 were based on the appraised values of such propertics.

I 2023, there was a gain on disposal of investment properties amounting 1o PhpB66,993.
13. OTHER ASSETS

As of December 31, this account consists of:

2023 2022
Stationery and supplies on hand P 742233 P £37.300
Prepaid Insurance 307,732 16,373
Documentary stamps 174,584 274,585
Prepaid taxes and licenses 85,795 85,795
Petry cash fund T0,000 80,0040
Prepaid expense-others 126,255 110,677

P 1,606,600 P 1,704,730

Other Assets as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 will mature within one year from the end
of each reporting period.

14. DEPOSIT LIABILITIES

As of December 31, 2023, classification of deposit liabilities as 1o Source follows:

NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS ' AMOUNT
Savings 7.367 P 606,259 44)
Demand 747 18,104,294
Special Savings Deposit 400 407,542,810
Deposit liabilities - FCDU 20 5,638,834
8,534 | 1,037,545,378

Dieposit labilities are m the form of savings and demand deposits. Savings deposits have annual interest rates
ranging from 0.125% to 2.00%: per annum in 2023 and 0.125% 10 1.00% in 2022,

Demand deposits, on the other hand, do not bear interest.
Page 34
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Interest expense incurred on deposit labilities amounted 1o P7.6 million and P4. 7million in 2023 and 2022, respectively.

| nder existing BSP regulations. deposit liabilities are subject to regular and liquidity reserve of 2% and 4%,
respectively, for demand and 2% and 3%. respectively, for savings in 2023 and 2022. The Bank is in
compliance with These BSP regulations as of the end of each reponting period.

All deposit labilities have maturity profile of within one vear as of December 31, 2023 and 2022,

As of December 31, 2023, deposit liabilities by Size of Accounts follow:

DEPOSIT SIZE NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS AMOUNT
PS040 and below 4267 P 5,626,198
PS.000.01 - P10,000 805 5.371.548
PLO000.01 - P15.000 459 5,498 593
P 15,000.01 - P20,000 244 4,181,150
P20,000.01 - 36,000 389 9316272
1 300 0000 | - P40, 000 248 EA73.23%4
P4O000.01 - P50,000 202 5,894,789
1P30,000.01-P40,000 150 9,657,341
P60, 000,01 - PRO, GO0 2 15,075,854
VRSO0 ] = B 1040, 000 161 14,223 448
PO O00.01 - 130,000 ilo 37091447
P1S0.000.00 - P200,000 170 29267952
P200,000.01 - P250,000 122 26,580,326
PRS0, 0000 - P3O0, 000 83 2 789,054
P300,000.01 - PA0O.000 138 47536078
P400,000.01 - PS00,000 9] 40204918
PSO0,000.01 - PTS0,000 174 101,226,304
PT50,000.01 - P 000,000 b6 56,763,071
MR UM« P 1 SO0 O 23 111,040,345
P SO0 000,00 - 12,000,000 a2 IRA82 2%
122,000, 000,01 -1 3,000,000 31 74,192,228
P8 000, D00, 0] P, 000, (D0 17 55,656,950
P4 000, 000,01 - S 000 000 10 44,019 174
Ohwer PS 000, 0040 30 206,023 481
= 8.534 P 1,037,545378

15 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

T'his accouom consists of

2023 2022
Duc 1o government agencics P 483453 P 402,733
Accounts payable 1,462,564 1,458,849
Accrued interest payable 267.624 170,552
Deposit of key for satery
deposit boxes 67, (M) 67, (i
Accrued expenses and
other payables 1,169,401 2,964,811
P 345142 P 5,063 945

Depostt o key for safety deposit boxes will mature upon termination of the lease contract for a property
being leased out by the Bank.  All other accrued expenses and other liabilitics as at December 31, 2023 and
2022 will mature within one year from the end of each reporting period.
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I6. EQUITY

6.1 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures

The primary objective of the Bank's capital management is to ensure that it complies with externally imposed capital
requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to suppont its business and to
maximize shareholders’ value.

Il Bank manages s capital structure, which is composed of paid-up capital and surplus reserve and makes
adjustments to these ratios in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In
order (0 maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Bank may adjust the amount of dividend payment lo
sharcholders, return on capital structure or issue capital securities.

HsP.mmm*smw.mmmmmmmfmwmmmwml
capital requirements, the BSP requires the Bank 10 maintain & prescribed capital and ratio of qualifying capital to
risk-weighted assets.

fa) Unimpuired Capital

| nder the current banking regulations, the qualitying capital accounts of the Bank should not be less than an amount
cqual 10 ten percent (10%) of s risk weighted assets. The qualifying capital of the Bank for purposes of
determining the capital-lo-risk assets is lotal capital funds excluding:

{a) Unbooked valuation reserves and other capital adjustments as may be required by the BSP:
(b) Total Outstanding unsecured credit accommodations to DOSRI;

(¢) Deterred tax assets;

(d) Goodwill. if any

(¢} Sinking fund for redemption of redeemable preferred stock; and,

{17 Other regulatory deductions.

Risk Assets consists of total assets after exclusion of cash on hand, due from BSP, loans covered by hold-out on or
assignment of deposits, loans or acceptances under letters of credit to the extent covered by margin deposits, and
other non-risk items as determined by the Monetary Board of the BSP.

I'he amount of surplus funds available for dividend declaration is determined also on the basis of regulatory net worth
after considering centain adjustments.

Under the relevant BSP regulations, the regulatory capital is analyzed into two tiers which are Tier 1 Capital plus

s 2 Capital less allowable deductions from the total of Tiers | and Tiers 2 capital

Tier 1 and Tier 2 capnal are defined as follows:

{a) Tier | Capital inciudes the following:
a. Paid-up common stock:
b. Surplus and surplus reserves; and,
¢. Undivided profits ( for domestic banks only).

Subject w deductions lor:
a. Treasury shares (if any )
b. Unrealized losses on underwritten listed equuity securities purchased;
«. Unbovked valuation reserves, and other capital adjustments based on the latest BSP repon of
examination;
d. Outstanding unsecured credit acommodations, both direct and indirect, w DOSRI;
¢. Goodwill; and.
f. Deferred Income Tax
Page 36
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(b) Tier 2 Capital includes:
a. Appraisal increment reserve - bank premises if any, as authorized by the Monetary Board of the
BSP; and,
b General loan loss provision, limited to a maximum of 1.0% of credit nsk-weighied assets

s ol December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Bank was in compliance with the minimum ratio of which net worth of the
Bank must bear 10 its 1o1al risk assels pursuant to Section 34 of the General Banking Law of 2000. The risk-based
capital adequacy ratio of the Bank was 25.63% in 2023 and 31.11% in 2022. Under the existing BSP regulations,
the determination of the Bank's compliance with regulatory requirements and ratios is based on the amount of the

Computation of Risk-Based Capital Adeguacy Ratio
O January 1. 2012, BSP Circular 688, dated May 26, 2010, took effect containing the revised risk-based adeguacy
framework for stand-alone thrifi banks, rural banks and cooperative banks which is based on Basel 1.5 wherein
UAR shall not be less than 1076 of the qualitying capital to risk-weighted assets.

In computing the CAR, the regulatory qualifying capital is analyzed into two tiers which are: (i) Tier | Capital, and
(i} Ter 2 Capital; less deductions from the Total Tier | and Tier 2, as provided in BSP Circular 688

The Bank's regulatory capital position as at December 31, 2023 is presenied below.

C alculation of Qualifying Capital

Net Tier | Capital 231,243,753
Net Lier 2 Capital 4,485,292
! otal Qualitying Capital 235,729,045
Iotal Credit Risk Weighted Assets 838,053,959
Risk-Weighted On-Balance Sheet Assets ¥38,055,959
Hisk-Weighted Off-Balance Sheet Assots -
| otal Credit Risk Weghted Assets B38.0U55.959
General Loan Loss Provision -
il Deductions
1 eial Obprer ational Rhl-\\:e'!lwd Assels 1 B41.375
lotal mww Assels 919,897,332
Risk-Hased Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) 25.63
{ ‘aommon Equity Tier | Ratio 25.14
19.04
1 apiral Conservation Buffer
25.14
Lotal | Capital Ratio
TIER | CAPITAL 735148759
¢ ommon Equity Tier | 99,950,200
Paid Up Capits 110,054,017
m‘r ""’"ﬁ 25,144,543
1,905,006
Deductions from CET ) Capital - Deferred tax assets 231,243,753
NET TIER | CAPITAL
Page 37
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Vootal TIER | Capital 131,243,753
TIER 2 Capital 4485292
Genernl loan hoss provision 4.485.292
TOTAL QUALIFYING CAPITAL 135,729,045

Capital for the reporting peniods under review s summariacd below:

013 22
Total lisbdities P i dees2 P 118536353
| otal eguty 235.231.507 113,026,423

Dlh«-tt—n‘-ls ratio 44420 £39.1

I'he tollowing is the computation of nsk asscts ratio ax of December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Tudnl Asscis __1.279.652.159 1.331.562,776
less None-risk assers:
©ash on Hand 12,681 847 15.119.852
D from BSF 14,474,634 31789767
Fined Assets (Net) 15,140,903 20.071.748
lovestment Scountics at Amontozcd @ osl 357,004,084 KRG 146
lital Non-risk asseis 399,301 468 455292 513
Hisk Assets K80, 350,691 876,270,263
Net Worth 235,231,507 3026423
Ihvided by Risk Assets 8I.350,691 %76.270.263
RISk ASSETS RATIO 26.72% 24.31%

b Caprial Allocation

The allocation of capital between specific operations and activities is, to a large cxient dnven by oplimizaion of the retum
achieved on the capital allocated The amount of capital allocaied o cach operston or sctivity s hased  pomaniy upon
the regulatony capital. but in some cases the regulatory requirements do nod reflect fully the vanng degrees of nsk
assocusted with different activities. In such cases, the capital requirements may be flexed 1o reflect difforing nsk peofiles
allocation of capital o subject to the overall kevel of capital 10 support a particular operataon of activity  The process of
specific operations and activities is undertaken independently of those responsible for the oporation. and s subject to
review by the Bank's BOD.

Although maxumization of the retum on nsk-adjusicd capital is the primcipal basts used in determming bow capatal is
allocated within the Bank o particular operalions or aclivitics, it is nof the sole basis wed lor decision making. Account
proliability 1s also mken, and syncrgics with other operations and activitics. the svailabiliny ol management and other
resources, and the it of the activity with the Bank '« longer term sirategic objectives

fci Minimum Captial Requirement

Ihe Monctary Board, in s Resolution No 1145 dated 4 August 2022, spproved the amendments 1o the relevant
provisions of the Manual of Regulations for Hanks (MORB) aimed at increasing the mimmum capital requirements for
rural baoks. The new minimum capialization of banks shall be as follows
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BANK CATEGORY REQUIRED MINIMUM CAPITALIZATION

Kural Bank - Head Office Only P50 mullion

Lip to 5 branches P50 million

& to 10 branches P120 million

More than 10 branches P200 mullion

For purposes of compliance with Section 1, the term branch shall exclude the branch-lite umits of banks.
fdy Mimimmerm Liguidity Kario

BSP Memorandum No, M-2022-004, Section 2 stales the Amendment 10 the Relielf Measure on the Reduction in
the Minimum Liguidity Ratio (MLR) of Stand-Alone Thrift Banks, Rural Banks and Cooperative Banks.
Memorandum No. M-2020-020 dated 7 April 2020, as amended by Memorandum No. M-2020-085 dated

| December 2020, 1s hereby further amended to read as follows:

The reduction in the MLR and the arrangements set forth in this memorandum shall be effective until
11 December 2022, unless otherwise revoked by the BSP

The Bank's MLR as of December 31, are analyzed below:

2023 2022

Eligible stock of liquid assets P 754,770,238 P 726,060,699
Total qualifying liabilities 914,630,938 975.936.995
B2.52% 74.40%

16.2 Capital Stock

Capial stock consisis of

SHARES
2023 e
= —
Common shares -P100 par value

Authorized 1000500 | 440, 000
= e
Issued and outstanding 999,502 was0

Authorized Capatal r 16400, (D (MM) r 142 L0, (30D

Subscribed Capual r W99, 950, 200 r P9, 050,200
—_—

16.3 Surpius Free

There was no dividend declaration in 2024,
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I6.4 Surplus Reserves

The components of this account as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 follows:

ANNUAL REPORT

2023 2022
Keserve lor bank mfrastructiure 4 37,163,711 P 37.163.711
Reserve for human resource and branch banking 11,801,601 11,801,601
Reserve for management intormation upgrade, 1T
development, and purchase of bank premises,
furniture, Nxtures and cquipment 8,500,000 . 500,000
P 57465312 P 57,465,312
Manugement's assesament on these reserves are summanzed below
{2) Bank infrastructure - the BOD has reviewed and revised the construction plans of new
building 1o refurbish the existing main structure and addition of a wing for meeting arca and
I'T conter adjacent 1 the old bullding
(b) Human resource and branch banking - the BOD retained the appropriation in line with its
ongoing plan of branching to other locations.
() Management mformation upgrade, I'T development and purchase of bank premises,
furniture, fixtures and equipment —+in view of the stringent security features proposed for
ATM cards, the BOD put on hold the implementation of this project
17 INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE
INTEREST INCOME
Agri/Agra Current
Agrarian Reform Loans 4,122,002
Otther Agricultural Credit Loans 6955415 11,077418
Smwall and Medium Enterprise Loans-Current
Small Emerprises 11.380.510
Medium Enterprises 10.567.714 21,948 225
Loans o Provate Corporations-C urrent R05.082
Louns 1o Individuals for Housing Purposes - Current 4,614,317
Loans to Individuals for Personal Use Purposes - Current
Auto Loans 1,781,454
Salary Loans 309,232 2090686
Loans to Individuals for Other Purposes - Current 10,855 859
Past Due Loans and ltems in Litigation
Agrarsan Reform Loans .
Other Agriculiural Credit Loans 16,860
Small Enterprises 543,626
Medium Enterprises
Auto Loans 186,295
Sulary Loans 39,450
Loans 1o Individuals for Housing Purposes 5,366
Loans 1o Individuals for Other Purposes 1,956,759 2,748,353
Sules Contract Receivable
Perfomung
Noo-Pertormmng 65,650 63,650
(iher Banks 10,880,958
Hesident Held to Maturity Financial Assets 18,056,881
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TOTAL INTEREST INCOME 83,143,436
INTEREST EXPENSE
Savings
Taxable 7,617,331
Lease Linbilities 291,311
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE 7,908,642
MET INTEREST INCOME 75,234,794
IS. OTHER INCOME
Details of this accoun are presented below.
2023 2022
Rent income P 1342835 p 1.427.179
Gan on disposal of
bank premises 499 49 682
Rent income - safety deposit box 86,050 81317
Retirement benefit assets -
Miscellancous 3,137,610 2,352,828
P P 11

Miscellaneous include income from insurance claims, penalties on loans, and loan application fees.

19. COMPENSATION AND FRINGE BENEFITS

This account consisis of

— 2023 2022
Salaries and Wages P 14,027,662 P 13458267
Officers and Employees Benefits 4,082,138 3,295.874
Directors Fees 1.619,000 1,552,000
SSS. HOMEF, Philhealth Premium Expense 1,265,906 1.042,823
Medical, Dental and Hosputalization 128,174 250,000
_ _ P 21,L1228M P 19,598, 964

F'he Bank has a total number of 19 officers, 35 rank and file employees and 54 total number of
employees as of December 31, 2023, (Based on latest submitted General Information Sheet)

20l. TAXES AND LICENSES

This account consists of:

2023 2022
Annual Registration Fees - BIR r 3500 P 3,500
Municipal Licenses and Business Permits 724,140 569,231
Gross Receipts Tax 3,293,7% 3,777,234
Real Eswate Tax 141,723 110,154
Kegistration/ Renewal of Motor Vehicles 11,122 9,830
v 4,17 P 4.469.949
= — J
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2023 2022

Tnsurance Expenses (see Nofe 21.a) P 3834197 P 3,479,304
Security, Clerical, Messengenal & Janitorial Services (see Note 21.5) 2,816,000 2,456,000
Power. Light and Water 1,562,033 1,371,700
Sugtionery & Supplies Used 344279 1,019,874
Management & Other Professional Fees 975,987 1.012.716
Fuel and Lubricants 982,414 1,007,511
Repairs and Maintenance 1,218,591 612,121
Pestage, Telephone, Cables and Telegrams 626,771 560,071
Litigation Expenses 132,999 247472
Fimes and Penalties 80465 360,578
Representation and Entertainment 272,000 278,000
Banking Fees 235,891 197 088
Vdvertising and Publicity 169 966 T3 2496
Fravelling Expenses 167,078 157,971
Donations & Charitable Contributions 2,000 80,000
“Membership Fees and Dues 44,622 77.240
Penodicals and Magazines 4 19,920
(her Expenses (see Note 21.c) 4,391,015 3517573

P 17,956,746 P 17.618.235
M.oa Insurance Expenses us of December 31, 2023 consists of Insurance -PDIC P2,230.505 and

Insurance - Others P1,603,692.
20b Securiiy, Clerical, Messengerial & Janitorial Services as of December 31, 2023 consisis ol
Salaries - P2,530.308 and Agency Fee - P285,692.

2le Breakdown of Other Expenses as of December 31, 2023 follows:

Miscellaneous Expense
Miscellancous Expense Non Capitalized
Seminar, Tramning
Meetings

Bereavement Expenses
Rice Allowance
Laundry Allowance
Food And Meal
Emergency Allowane
Unconsumed Leaves
Cash Gift

Loyalty Award

Misc Expense - FCIN
TOTAL

P

1.017.516
3,976
143,685
18,737
66,210
595,520
147 600
1,821,754
146,150
364,485
46,800
17,500
1,283

P ﬂl.ﬂls
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21 DEPRECIATIONAMORTIZATION EXPENSE

I s aceount consists of:

2023 2022
Building P 1,063,190 P 1,063,190
Right of Used Assets 1.230.086 1232639
| ransportation Equipment 289,800 289.800
Fumiture, Fixtures and Equipment 453,747 521816
| caschold Improvements 536,424 554 498
Kt llj A -Hulkdmg - )
P 1573248 P 3,661,943
23 EMFPLOYEE BENEFITS
23.1 Salaries and Other Benefits
Details of this account are presented below.
2023 2022
Short-term emplovee benefits 21122879 19,508 064
Post-emplovment defined beneflit 626,453 '0 26.453

21,749,332 20225417

23.2 Post-empioyment Defined Bencfit Plan

fa) Characteristics of the Detinid Bencfit Plan

The Bank maimtains a rumhd.llmmuﬁhuuw)- post-cmployment defined benefit plan that is
being administered by trustee individual that is legally separated from the Bank The post
employment plan covers all regular full-time emplovees.

Th-e:::mql_ rcm::mml age 15 60. Normal retirement benefit is an amount cquivalent to |00,
10 125% of the final monthly covered compensation for every vear of credited service

b Explantion of Ameosnts Prosvueed in the Financial Statemonts
Actuarial valuaions are made annually 1o update the retirement benefit costs and the smount

of contributions. Al amounts presented below and in the ing pages
_ succeeding are based on the
actuanal vmmmm&mmhdmmmyiumzl_
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The amounts of retirement henefit asset recognized in the statements of financial position
are determined as follows

2023
Fair value of plan assets P 13099871
Present value of the obligation {6,127 374)
6972497

Unrecognized asset due 1o effect of
assel ceitmg limi (1,780,981)

4 5,191,516
===_=__“

The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reponting period by
category and risk characteristics is shown below

2023
Cash and cash equivalents P 2434272
Loans 8617318
Investments 1,048,251

P 13,099,871
= _—

Plan assets do not comprise any of the Bank's own financial instruments or any of its assets
occupied and/or used in its operations.

The movements in the present value of the DBO recognized in the books are as follows

2023
Balance at begimning of year r 6,614,350
Current service cost 626,453
Interest cost B
Actuanial losses due 1o
Changes in financial assumptions
Adjustments (0, 113.429)
Changes in demographic assumptions
Benetits paid i
Balance at end of vear P 6.127.374
—- —
I'he components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive
income (loss) in respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan are as follows
2023
Reported in profit or loss
Current service cost P 626,453
Inierest income — net (212.545)
| o 413,908
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Reparted in other comprehensive loss fincome)
Actuartal losses arsing from changes in:

Financial assumptions P :
Experience adjustments -
Changes in demographic assumptions -
Return on plan asseis -

Changes on the eflect of asset ceiling =

P -

Current service costs Torm pan of the Salaries and Other Benefits under Other Operating
Expenses account. while net interest expense (income) is presented as part of Interest
Income m the statements of comprehensive income.

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income or loss were included within items
that will not be reclassified subsequently 10 profit or loss.

mdmmmmorummmmmhymwmu
following significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2023
Discount rates 5.08%
Expecied rate of salary increases 2.00%

{c) Risks Associated with the Retiremens Plan

mm:mm%klummmhmhnmvmﬁshm-wmmtwmm
and salary risk.

(1) Investment and Interest Risks
The present value of the DBO is caleulated using a discount rute determined by reference to market v ields
o government bonds. Generally, a decrease in the interest rate of a reference government bond will
ncrease the plan obligation However, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s

{11} Longevity and Salary Risks
The present value of the DBO is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the montality of the
plan participants both during and afier their employment, and 1o their future salaries. Consequently,
Increases in the life expectancy and salary of the pian participants will result in an increase in the

2023
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24. TAXES
DOCUMENTARY STAMPS TAX - HEAD OFFICE P 1,270,919
BIR ASNUAL REGISTRATION FEE
Head Office | S
Market branch S
Maoline branch 500
Salwag - branch S0
Mauban - branch i S
Balavan - branch hite 500
{andelana - branch lite S0

P 1,500

—_——

REAL ESTATE TAX
Head Office P 18,321
Markct branch 67474
Maoling branch 52211
Halayan - branch lie 3717

PERCENTAGE TAXE.:

LICENSES AND PERMIT FEES

Head  Wce r 384,087
Mirket branch 169,656
Moline branch K5 856
Salawag branch 4,541
—_ P T24.140
WITHHOLDING TAXES AT SOURCE
Head OtTice P 295,193
Market branch 1,428
Molmo branch 41,718
Safawap branch 41,641
= P 379,981
WITHHOLDING TAXES ON COMPENSATION
Hewd Oifice r 649,435
“larkei branch 6,041
Molmo branch 34018
Sitlawag branch 30,945
P 720,442
_— —  _ ———— = . == ——
FINAL TAXES - OTHERS
Head Office r 1.025474
Market branch 354720
Molmo branch 121,020
Salawige branch 21,782
— [ 1,522,967
FINAL TAXES -ESTATE
Head Office P X35
Market branch 7130
Maolino branch 19826
Salawag branch =
. P 27,791 Page 46
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INCOME TAX

Annual - 2022 P 126,054
17 Cuaarter - 2023 24,974

Quiarier - 2023 So 411
3" Quarter - 2023 250,908

A
e
Inder Philippine tax laws, the Bank is subject o percentage and other taxes (presented "Taxes and Licenses” in the
Statement of Income) as well as incomme taxes.  Percentage and other taxes paid consist principally of gross receipts
tax (GRT) and documentary stamp taxes (DST), Income taxes include the corporate income tux and final taxes paid
at the rate of 20%, which is a final withholding tax on gross interest income from government securities and other
deposit substitutes. Taxes and licenses incurred by the Bank amounted to P4, 174,282 and P4,466,949 in 2023 and
W22 respectively

Republic Act (RA) No. 11534, otherwise known as the Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Emterprises
(CREATE) Act, provides that the RCIT rate shall be 25% staring July 1, 2020. Where the corporation’s net income
does not exceed PHP 3 million and its total assets do not exceed PHP 100 million (excluding land where the
business is situated), the tax rate shall be 20%. In addition. interest expense allowed as a deductible expense shall
be reduced by 20% of interesi income subjected to starting final tax.

I'he tollowmg arc the magor changes brought about by the CREATE Act that are relevant (o and
considered by the Bank

regular corporate income tax (RCIT) rate was reduced from 30% 1o 25% starting July |, 2020;

minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) rate was reduced from 2% 1o 1% starting
July 1, 2020 until June 30, 2023, for July 2023 onwards the rate is back at 2% and,

the allowable deduction for nterest expense is reduced from 33% to 20% of the interest
mcome subjected o final tax

Current Tax Expense
Hegular lucome Tay Computation - Grossed Lp

Income tax due tor the vear ended December 31. 2023 15 computed as follows

income before Tax 2 30,694,996
Non-deductible Provision for Credit Losses 3276676
Total Non-taxable Interest Income subject 1o Final Tax {28,937.839)
I otal Non-deductible Interest Expense - 20% of

Interest Income Subject to Final Tax 5.787.568
(nher Recon 2,147 850
Rental pasaneni (1,554,036)
NOLCO 202 {11,415,216)
[ axable Income B

Muluply by Tax Rate 25%
r =

W

Page 47
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NON-TANABLE INCOME SUBJECT TO FINAL TAX

Interest Income - HTM Financial Assets P 18,050,881
Interest Income - Deposits in Bank 10,880,955
P 28,937,839

SMON-DEDUCTIBLE INTEREST EXPENSE

il Son-taxable income Subpect 10 Final Tax r 28,937,839
'.',,:h;h]\ 519 20%

P 5,787 568
_—_—_—_
RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME PER ROOK AND NET INCOME PER TAX PURPOSES

et Income per Book r 30,694,996
Wid Son-deductible expense other taxable income
Son-deductible interest expense 5. TE7 568
Sordeductible Prowvision for Credil Losses 3276470
{ther Recon 2,147 850
Less: Non taxable income
Rental payment (1,554,036)
Non-taxable mierest income subject 1w final tax {28,937 839)
NOLCO (11, 415.218)
NET TANABLE INCOME r -
—_——— SSS =

Minbmum Corporate 1oy Computation

2023
Ciroas Income r RO 69K 90
Fotal Non-Taxable Interest Income Subject o Final Tax (28,937 839
Total Non-Deductible Imerest Expense - 20% of
Imerest Income Subject 1o Final Tax 5.787.508
Geruss Income Subject 1o MO 1T b S8 638
Vlowable Deductions: (Based on B LR - Revenue Memo Circular No., 4-2003 {i):
{ ompensation and Fninge Benefits P 2112287
Interest Expense 7,617,331
Insurance 123,508
Bank Supervisory Fees 235,891 31,206,606
et Taxable Gross Income Subject to MOCTT 35,342,032
Multiply by MCIT Rae L.5%
Mininium ('u_rﬁnm- Income 1ax P 330,130
= ———————————————)
o HOSS INCOME
Intcrest Ingoseme i B3 143,456
Fees and Commission 1,121,486
Gain from Sale of ROPA 866.993
{Mher Income 4,566,994
P 59,698,909
Page 48
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INCOME TAX PAYABLE

Tax Due P 530,130
Less: Tax Credits
Prior Year Excess =
15t 0 3nd guaners 372,352
Income Tax Payable, end of vear 4 157,778
Compuiation of Income Tav Expense:
23 2022
MOT r 30,130 P 97.997
Final Tax- Inicrest Income 5592559 1623813
Adjusiments
tolal 6,122,689 1921 810
Changes Deferred Tax-Al 1,595,935
Deeferred Tax Income | 364,384 (1.587.415)
Income Tax Expense P 9,083,007 P L334£9_b_
Details of NOLCO are as follows
Year incurred Amount Appled Balance Expired
2020 14,882,797 11415216 3,467 581 025
14852797 11415216 3487 581

15 Supplementary Informstion vnder Hevenne Regulations 19-2811

RR No. 19-201 1 thm prescribes the use of new income tax forms starting with calendar vear 2013 became effective
on December 9, 2012, Companies are now required 1o include; as purt of” the noes 1o the financial saements, the
schedules and information on taxable income and deductions.

Below is the additional information roquited by RR 19-2011. This information is preseated for purposes of filing
with the BIR and is nol a roguired pant of the basic linancial stalements.

Interext Imcome

The hreakdown of the Rank's Intercst Income consists of:

F imancial Income Tax

Statement Heturn
Losns and recervables, current P 5139158 r 51,391,586
Losns and receivables, PD, LL LE4001 LEE011
Bank deposits 10,880,958 -
Held-to-matunty (inancial asseis 18,056 881 -

P 83,143,43% P 54205597

Caxt of Services

The breakdown of the Bank's deductible cost of services consists of:

Fimancial Income Tax
Statemeni Return
Interesi expense P 7908 642 | 1,829,763
Page 49
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(her Operating Income
Dietails of the Other Operating Income of the Bank for 2023 are as follows:
Financial Income Tax
Statement Return
Fews and commissions mcome P 1,121,486 P 1,121,486
Cain from Sale of Non-financial B06,993 Bbb,993
(ther Income

P 6555473 P %

e ——

Uperating Expenses
Dietails of the Bank’s deductible expenses for 2023 are as follows:
Fimancial Income Tax
Stalemient Heturn

« ompensabion fnnge benefits P 21,749.332 P 21122879
Taxes and licenses 4,174,282 4,174,282
Depreciation 31.573.248 2343161
Insurance Expenses 3.834,197 3834197
Sevufity, Clerical, Messengerial & Janiorial Services 2,816,000 2. 816,000
Provision for probable losses 3,276,676 -
TRemt - 1,554,036
Ligation Expenses 232,999 232,906
Power. Lught and Water 1,562,033 1.562.033
Repars and Maintenance 1,218,591 218,591
Hepresentation and Entertainment 272,000 272,000
Sttonery & Supphics Used 344,279 4279
Fuel and Lubricants G82.414 Q82414
Postage, Telephone, Cables and Telegrams 626,771 626,771
Supervision Fees 235,891 235,891
Managemen & (eher Professional Fees 975,987 975987
Donanons & Chantable Contributions 2 000 3 MMy
I ravelling Expenses 16TOTS I6TOTR
Nembership Fees and Dues 44,622 44,622
Ldvertising and Publicity 165 966 169, 5900
Foes and Commission 364,986 364,980
Fings, Penalties and Other Charges 80,465 80,465
Uiher Expenses 4,391,015 4391013
Periodicals and Magazines 440 440
NOLCO - 11415216

- r S5 71 P 58,931,307

Deficiency Tax Assessments and 1 ax Cases

The Bank has received a Letter of Authority from the Bureau of Internal Revenpe for the continuation of
andit of the Bank's tax liabilitics for the taxable period from 01°0172018 1o 12/731/2018 because of reassignment of the

vise due 10:Protested cases/ cases Tor remvestigation.

I'he case was referred o Revenue Officer Hannah Marie A. Magsino under Group Supervisor

Chona D, De Ramos pursuant 1o Letter of Authority No. 054A-2023-000000126 dated February 3, 2023,

The Bank ensures compliance with the required submissions and replies to assessment notices for
proper disposition of assessment cases. The Bank has paid the deficiency tax for income tax amounting w Phpl 397 245
pross receipl tax amounting 1o Phpb4,534 and documentary stamps tax amounting 10 Phpl 35,000,
As of December 31, 2023, the company has no outstanding tax cases.

Page 95
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6. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

I'he summary of the Bank 's transactions and the related outstanding balances with DOSRI and other related
parties as of and for the vears ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Amounts of Transaction Ouistanding Balance
Related Party Cnu:'pr; 2023 2022 02 26022
kev Management Personnel-
Compensation 1,619,000 1.352.000
OSSR
Loans and Receivables - -
Imerest Income - 6,500

26,1 Key Management Personnel ( ompensation
Short-term benefits paid 10 key management employees amounted 10 P1.6 million in 2023 and P1_5 million in
m 2022 which are presented as part of Salanes and other benefits under Other ( perating Expenses in the
statements of comprehensive income

26.2 Direciors, Officers, Stockholders and Related Interests

In 2020, the Bank approved one DXOSRI loan with an interest rate of 3 50% amounting 10 PES6.000 which had
no outstanding balance as of December 31, 2022, The loan was fully paid in June 21, 2022

Related Party Loans:

Date of loan release 06012022
Principal amount PSO0.000
Interest rate 3.75%

Term 6/1/2022 w» 6223
Ontstanding balance as of 1273172023 P201.241
Interest paid as of 2023 P25.077
Dasie of loan release 04192023
Principal amount P350,000
Ieterest e 4.50M%

Term V1972023 10 4202026
Ouistanding balance as of 12312073 P238.623

Interest paid as of 2023 PI13.701

Date of loan release 03032023
Principal amount PS00,000
l!mcfest rale 3. lii'-

om 0303202 03202
Oustanding balance as of 12312023 e
Interest paid as of 2023 p;,‘:‘;;;
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27 COMMITMENTS AND O ONTINGENCIES
The followmg are the signiiicant commitments and contingencics mvaolving the Hank:
271 Claims and Litipations

The Bank is 4 defendant in s arous cases pending in couns for alleged clamms agamst the Bank the outcome of
which arc nat iully determinable ol present

27.2 Ovkers
There arc other commitments amd contingent liahilities that arise 1 the normal course of the Hank s operations
that arc mot reflected i the financial satements. A< of Decomber 31, 2023 and 2022 management 1 of the
opminn that kesses, if any, from these items will aot bave a matenial eifect on the Bank's financal stulements

IR, EARNINGS PER SHARE

Bassc carmings por comamon share were computed as follows

2013 2022
Net Income P ILel1 90 P 9235782
Dhivaded by the weighted averuge
number of outstanding cosmmon shares 999 502 YO 507
£, EARNINGS PER SHARE (o) P 21.62 I 824

Page 52
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29, ROOK VALLE PER SHARE
Book value per share were compuied as follows:

p. P 022

a. Fquity P 135231507 P 213619518
b, Divided !ﬂ b nt’uuulmdnu common sharcs 999,502 a99 507
. BOOK VALUE PER SHARE ln? P 23535 P 213.73

30. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BSP

Presenicd below and in the succceding pages are the supplementary information required by the BSP under Section
174 { Appendix 35) of the BSP Manual of Regulations for Banks (MORRB) 10 be disclosed as pant of the nofes o

financeal statcments.
{a) Selected Financial Performance Indicators

The following formula was uscd 1o compute for Return on Equity (ROE).
ROE = Nei Income after Tax / Average Capival

2023 2022
Net Income P 21601989 r 2320
Divided by Average Capital 224425513 2061 33,096
Return on k. ROE 9.63% 4.4!5:
The followmg formula was used to compute for Reum on Average Assews (ROA)
ROA = Nei Income afier Tax / Average of Toial Assets
013 pLi g
Net Income P 21,611,989 P 9238282
Divided by Average of Tolal Asscts 1 3OS, 904 015 1,335 188 405
Return on Assets EIIOAJ 1.65% 0.69%
Compuatation of Net Interest Margin Hario
The lollowing formula was used W compute for Net lrterest Margm Ratio:
Net Interest Margin Ratio = Net Imterest Income’ Average Earning Assefs
023 2022
Total Interest [ncome r 83,143,436 P 6, 178,264
Less: Inicrest Expensc 7,908,642 5.065.903
Net Interest Income 75,234,794 61,112,359
Average Eaming Asscis:
Due from BSP 14,474,634 31,789,767
e from (her Banks 370,609,673 200,839 934
Loans (Gross) 512,278,146 581.B45.112
Invesiment Securities ol amontized cost 357,004,084 IR0 146
Toial Average Eaming Asscis P 1,254, 366,537 P 1.292.785.95%
NET INTEREST MARGIN RATIO 6.00% 4.75%
Page 53
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The following (ormuls was used 1o compute for [everage Rabo

LEVERAGE RATIO= Tear | Capital Total tusets

pi 4] 022
Tier | Capital 231,243,783 197278611
Testal Assets 1,279.652,159 1,332 155,80
LEVERAGE RATIO 1R07% 14.E1%

The tollowng lormuls was used 1w compute for Debt o Equany Katio

DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO= Toval Liabilities - Totai Equit

02} w2
Total Labilitics 1,044 420,652 1118 536353
Total Equity 235,231,507 211619518
DERT TOEQUITY RATIO e N §523.60%

The foliowing formigda was used 1w compute Tor Dbt o U apual Rauo

DEBT TO CAPITAL RATIO= Toral Liabifities © Total Asveiy

2023 2022
Total Tinbilites 1,044 420,652 (NILETELE
Total Assets 1,279,652,15% 1,332 155871
DEET TO CAPITAL RATIO Ki1.61% B4 6%

(&) apital Instrumenis Ivaed

As of December 31, 2023, the Baok has no capital instruments. considered in the compatation of the Bank 's
regulatory and qualifving capital m sceordance with Circular 781 Rasel 1T Implementing Gudelines on
Minimum Capital Roguirements. which may include, mstraments reconded as part ol equity or a financial hability
gualifving as Tier 2 capital

fed Nignificant Credit Exposures for Loans

As @t December 31, 2023 and 2022 indormation on the concentralion of credit as bo idustry of
receivables from customers & as follows

a3 22
AMOL NI Ve AMOL N e
Agriculture, forestry und (ishing 86,722,791 17 115,691 5835 T
Real estate activilics 162.492.313 32 177788741 il
Accommodation and lood scrvice sty 0,684,971 19 B4 965 D05 i
Constructumn 26300 S h 20,422 963 i
Masulaciurmg 1,664 889 | 24,495 976 i
Wholesale and rotal rade 39,966,749 3 MUYAT T 1
Transportation and storage -
and communmication 15.681.24% 3 5. 732077 I
Educaton 2082142 - A4 7 .
Human health and social »
worrk activilies 1,705,048 . 1,996, 305 -
Profcssaonal, Scientific & Techmical Ac 7,984 95K 2 -
Others wnowy activities b3 B0 529 12 44 9T ]
$12.167.003 100 SEILB45 012 LL1]
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fd) Credit Niasus of Loans

I'he breakdown of loans and receivables (gross of uneamned interests, discounts and other charges) as to stalus
is shown below.

Total
Non- Loan
Performing performing Portiolio
02}
Gross carrving amount: 500,247,169 16,632,031 516,879,200
Allowance for ECL 17,051,144 11,813,833 28,864,977
B Nt c:rrnn_‘_umal 483,196,025 4 K18, 198 488,014,223
Toual
Non- Loan
Pertorming porTormung Porttolio
2022
Giross carmying amount 570,245.245 17.039,797 587,285,042
Allowance for ECL 15471,741 9,903,042 25,374,783

Net carrving amount

554,773,504 7,136,755 561.910,25v

fe) Amalvsis of Loan Portfolie as io Type of Necurity

As 1o security. receivables from customers (gross of allowance for impairment losses) are classified into
the |..Ilmung

2023 2022
Secured:

Real esite mongage ¥ 483,338,289 ¥ 835,336,075
Chanel mongage 15,226,601 19,819,068
Deposit hold-out 5,294,753 18,573,102
503,859,703 §71,728.245
L nsecured BT 300 10116867

TOTAIL P 12,167,003 P 581.845.112
—— —————— -
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For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2023
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Percent Percent
This 1o Previous 1 Increase
Juarier Tutal Quarier Total iecrcune)
Lovares & THscount (per G1)
i srreni 4B, 147 508 04, 72% S58.602,532 96.001%
Pl Dhue & Loans m Liigatsn 27,019,495 5 2% 23,242 380 3.9
el Do & [hscosant 12167003 AR 2% 81845112 100 (s
FASTINCE X TTEMS IN LITHGATHON RATH):
Pouad Porad Do Lasans & D in Litigation S 2R%, ¥
Pomal T o gnd [ isooumt
H villeciom of Fast Do Loans & bems o Litageagion
varts. Bepnmne | Provis {uaner) 25 407 u22
et [ 201K
e M 2R ITT Qs
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Schedule 1
IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.
Schedule of Net Deferred Taxes

For the years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Statemenis of Comprehesive lncome

Statement of Financial Other Comprehensive
Pasition Profit of Loess Income { Loss)
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Deferred Tax Assets:
Impairment allowance for:
Loans and receivables 7518398 6,692,424 825974 1,904,509 - -
Investment propertics 75.000 73,000 - . - -
Liease liabilities 816,613 1,132,294 {315,681) RILTE. T -
Acturial gain (Loss) (278,357) - (278, 357) - - =
8,131,654 7.899.718 231,936 2,205,378 - -
Deforred Tax Assets:
Retirement benefit assets (3.853,697) (2.0B7,674) (1,766,023) - - =
Accrued interest receivables (1,018,561) (881,127) (137433 (306.283%) - -
ROV (774,599)  (1,082,120) 307,522 (311,680 - .
(5.646.856) (4.050.922) (1,595934) (617.964) - 3
Net deferred Tax Assels 1,484,798 3.905,006
Deferred Tax Income (Expense) !IJHJW! 1.587.415 - -
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Schedule 2

IMUS RURAL BANK, INC.

Right
For the year ended December 31, 2023

RIGHT OF USE ASSETS:

Beginning Balance P 4,328,481

Less Amorization Expense
SALAWAG P 628,143

MAUBAN 495,871
CANDELARIA 106,073 1,230,086

ROUA, END P 3,098.384

LEASE LIABILITIES:
Beginning Balance P 4,529177

Less Payments net of interest Expense
SALAWAG P 670915
MAUBAN 431,076
CANDELARIA 160,734 1,262,724

LEASE LIABILITIES END P 3,266,453

INTEREST EXPENSE LEASE LIABILITIES:

SALAWAG P 133,338
MAUBAN 135,924

CANDELARIA _J%‘L
P 291,311

— —— — Page 108 - - —
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8. Information on sustainable finance as required under Sec. 153 of the Manual of Regulations for Banks
(MORB)

a. Sustainability strategic objectives and risk appetite

The Bank aims to find a way to balance economic growth with environmental and social responsibility and
ensures that the sustainability strategy is compliant with all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Our risk appetite is to minimize our risks exposures to our employees and shareholders and their safety, our
reputation and corporate governance while accepting an increased degree of risk in pursuit of our key strategic
objectives.

b. Overview of Environmental and Social (E&S) risk management system

The Bank is aware that climate change and other environmental and social risks could pose financial difficulties
on the Bank's operations. The bank stands by its commitment to protect the well-being of its employees by
implementing policies that provide for a flexible and safe working environment. For our clients and
communities, we continued to provide uninterrupted, safe and secure banking services while providing good
governance, sound risk management and environmental and social responsibility.

To this end, we aim to embed our sustainability policies including environment and social risk areas into our
corporate governance framework, risk management system, and strategic objectives in consonance with the size
and risk profile of our operation.

c. Breakdown of E&S risk exposures of the bank per industry

The Bank caters to the following industries which are vulnerable to E&S risk.

Total credit exposure by industry Amount (in PHP) % of share
Accommodation and food service activities 98,684,971 19.27
Agriculture, forestry and fishing 86,722,791 16.93
Construction 29,301,366 5.72
Education 2,082,142 0.41
Electric, gas, steam and water - -
Financial and insurance activities - -
Human health and social work activities 1,705,048 0.33
Manufacturing 3,664,889 0.72

== — — Page 10 -
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Others service activities 63,880,529 12.47
Real estate activities 162,492,313 31.73
Transportation and storage and communication 15,681,245 3.06
Wholesale and retail trade 39,966,749 7.80
Professional, Scientific & Technical Activities 7,984,958 1.56

d. Managing the E&S risks and their impact on the bank

With our Sustainable Finance Framework already in place, the bank can now use it to identify, assess, and
manage our environmental and social risks and impacts associated with financing particular business activities or
industry sectors.

The bank will continue to avoid businesses and activities that have adverse environment and social impacts.
e. Initiatives to promote adherence to internationally-recognized Sustainability Standards and Practices

The Board and Senior Management shall endeavor to promote adherence to internationally-recognized
sustainability standards and practices by:

1. Continuing to offer loan products and services that provide beneficial contributions to the society and its
environment;

2. Ensuring that operations are compliant with applicable laws, rules and regulations; and aligned with the local
best practices and international standards on Environmental, Social and Corporate Governance (ESG).

3. Ensuring that employees are provided with the right competencies and learning opportunities that can
enhance their productivity and level of self-sufficiency.

Our journey towards sustainability

As we built our commitment to sustainability, below are some of the sustainable development goals we have
done so far to address various social, economic, and environmental challenges:

1. Alleviate poverty and hunger

SDG 1 No Poverty: IRB aims to end poverty through its Kiddie Savings campaign. We
believe teaching financial literacy at a younger age helps children develop good savings
F¥Y™Y '  habits.

—— SDG 2 Zero Hunger: To free mare Filipinos from hunger the bank is extending loans to
.+~ market vendors, fisherfolks, farmers, hog and poultry raisers, our borrowers, who put
v U CALS s

food in every home.
2. Positive company culture
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SDG 3 Good health and well being; SDG 4 Quality Education; SDG 8 Decent work and
Economic growth: The bank aims to promote good health, and well-being for growth
and success among everyone in the organization.

The bank through its HR department organizes training for employees both from
internal and external sources such as face-to face seminar or webinars for in-house or
those seminars conducted by Rural Bankers Associations and the likes. To boost
camaraderie and team work, the bank is holding annual Team building for its
employees; every summer our male employees join Liga ng Basketball in the
community, and the bank’s yearly Christmas party are among the activities supported
by our organization.

3. Embracing Diversity in the workplace

| e

- -
o IR

a. Population

&5 =

- -

T

b. Age

&S

SDG 5 Gender Equality; SDG 10 Reduced Inequalities: In this ever-changing world, the
banking industry is also moving forward. As we work towards creating a thriving future,
we welcome challenges, opportunities, and a diverse workplace. The bank supports the
UNSDG goals in promoting gender equality and diversity. It creates a culture of
belongingness where employees feel comfortable and valued, thus they are
empowered to do their best and contribute more for the benefit of all.
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Il. Compliance with Appendix 62 of the MORB — Disclosures in the Annual Report and Published Statement of
Condition

A. Capital structure and capital adequacy:

2023 2022
(In # Millions) (In # Millions)
1 | Tier 1 Capital
Paid-up common stock 99,950 99.950
Retained earnings 110.054 88.091
Undivided Profit 25.144 9.238
Total Tier 1 Capital 231.244 197.279
2 | Tier 2 Capital
General Loan Loss Provision 4.485 4,784
3 | Deductions from Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital
Deferred tax asset 2.485 3.905
4 | Total Qualifying Capital 235.729 202.063
5 | Total Risk Weighted Assets 919.897 649.439
6 Total Credit Risk Weighted Assets 838.056 571.249
7 Total Operational Risk Weighted Assets 81.841 78.190
8 Total Market Risk Weighted Assets - -
9 | Total Capital Adequacy Ratio 25.63% 31.11%
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio 25.14% 30.38%

Page 107 —_—— - - —




